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Consolidated Income Statement

HECR-AF+-A=1t—-HLEE

for the year ended 31 December 2019

2018
T
HK$'000
FE A Interest income 6 1,470,479 1,229,710
FEXH Interest expense 7 (946,488) (693,501)
R 2 WA Net interest income 523,991 536,209
B AR 2 A Net premiums earned 8 1,987,650 3,157,652
E AU A Other income 9 465,397 249,633
ZEWAEE Total operating income 2,977,038 3,943,494
BRER~E 25 - BN H =R Net claims incurred, benefits paid and
REFEF ATNGRE Y movement in policyholders’ liabilities 8 (2,021,558) (3,321,037)
Ae H e R Net commission and levy expenses 8 (138,361) (142,991)
KRELH Operating expenses 10 (479,651) (412,388)
RITRERTNZE G H Operating profit before impairment 337,468 67,078
BELE Charge of impairment allowances 12 (934) (134)
BRE BB F Profit before taxation 336,534 66,944
I Taxation 13(a) (19,073) 59,614
REE R Profit for the year 317,461 126,558

SE165F 273 PP N 4R
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financial statements.

The notes on pages 165 to 273 are an integral part of these consolidated
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

BE-ZE-NE+ZA=+—-HLEE
for the year ended 31 December 2019

2018
FAT
HK$'000
REE A Profit for the year 317,461 126,558
HitemEiks : Other comprehensive income:
HEAgEH»LERRE Items that are or may be reclassified
e : subsequently to profit or loss:
NPETHITAE M4 EWEE  Debt instruments at fair value through
s T A : other comprehensive income
— RNFEZRDFE — change in the fair value, net 27,311 (7,182)
— SIK R EM — change in the loss allowance, net 12 (46) 14

REEHMamEKE (SH#) - Other comprehensive income/(10ss)

B R FL IR for the year, net of tax 27,265 (7,168)
AEELE R LM Total comprehensive income
for the year 344,726 119,390

F165E273T DT WE &M S IREH—EB% < The notes on pages 165 to 273 are an integral part of these consolidated
financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

ZE-NAF+=ZA=+—H
as at 31 December 2019

B’ ASSETS
NekEHRe Cash and short-term funds 14 27,908,184 29,390,855
R B RS FR Interest and remittance receivables 15 518,691 437,919
PTEERBTA Derivative financial instruments 16 200,702 161,047
WA A A5 Loan portfolio, net 17 6,928,045 6,442,064
IEHIE R Investment securities:
— A ATFEZRIT A M — fair value through other
2 EWER comprehensive income 18(a) 4,920,402 5,091,664
— URFEZR LI AR S — fair value through profit or loss 18(b) 378,803 543,612
— IR R A AN B R — amortised cost 18(c) 12,034,506 11,546,833
INCES TR Placements with the Exchange Fund 19 12,881,627 7,734,934
T ERIN  He R E MR Prepayments, deposits and other assets 21 1,337,349 829,491
126 RE T T 2 7= Deferred tax assets 13(b) 79,170 77,866
BIRE R~ Reinsurance assets 25 208,991 171,518
& 7E 7 7= Fixed assets 22 109,864 53,766
BB Total assets 67,506,334 62,481,569
il LIABILITIES
IVER RS Interest payable 23 372,874 257,468
RIFORIR ~ RS FFS Accounts payable, accrued expenses
R L Ath 71 57 and other liabilities 24 5,261,217 5,061,679
PTESBITE Derivative financial instruments 16 299,935 264,386
L HAFR I 10 (R Current tax liabilities 13(b) 123,115 104,077
{RB& T 5 Insurance liabilities 25 6,501,639 4,607,373
B AITHRSIES Debt securities issued 26 39,710,963 37,292,877
AR B Total liabilities 52,269,743 47,587,860
& EQUITY
WA AR SR Capital and reserves attributable to
Mg the equity holder:
A&7 Share capital 27 7,000,000 7,000,000
R & A Retained profits 6,553,108 6,263,342
NB& 1% Contingency reserve 1,658,669 1,632,818
N EES Fair value reserve 24,814 (2,451)
PR Total equity 15,236,591 14,893,709
T R 28 B Total liabilities and equity 67,506,334 62,481,569

EERET T _ZFHA T LAMERERKR

FIfT o

REX Eddie W. M. Yue
BlEEFMITEFE Deputy Chairman and Executive Director

F65E273TAHMTENFAM SRR —F -

2020.

B

Raymond L. C. Li
HM7TEFEF LA Executive Director and Chief Executive Officer

Approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 27 April

The notes on pages 165 to 273 are an integral part of these consolidated
financial statements.
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REN@ETR
Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

BE-ZE-NE+ZA=+—-HLEE
for the year ended 31 December 2019

TS REEF REgE  ATEH#EE B#
Share Retained Contingency Fair value
capital profits reserve reserve Total

TR TR TAL TR TR
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

T-\E—f—HB4%% Balance as at 1 January 2018 2,000,000 6,089,765 1,679,837 4,717 9.774,319
REF R Profit for the year - 126,558 - - 126,558
Hivemks Other comprehensive income - - - (7,168) (7,168)
AEELEARESH Total comprehensive income for the year = 126,558 = (7,168) 119,390
R (E27) Capital injection (Note 27) 5,000,000 - - - 5,000,000
HRZHEFIEAD FENRERE  Transfer of 50% or 75% of net risk premium
A ER50% 3k 75% EX AR eamed from retained profits to
contingency reserve = (209,261) 209,261 = =
B MR A& 12 B E R B A Release of contingency reserve to
retained profits - 256,280 (256,280) = =
E-N\F+-A=1—H%% Balance asat 31 December 2018 7,000,000 6,263,342 1,632,818 (2,457) 14,893,709
FMEBMESREENF 1654 Changes on adoption of HKFRS 16 (Note 2.1)

Za) (E2.1) - (1,844) - - (1,844)
F-B-NE-A—BZE54% Restated balance as at 1 January 2019 7,000,000 6,261,498 1,632,818 (2,451) 14,891,865
KEE R Profit for the year - 317,461 - - 317,461
Hib e mkas Other comprehensive income - - - 27,265 27,265
AEELAKRERR Total comprehensive income for the year - 317,461 - 27,265 344,726

HERZHENEADHANKESE  Transfer of 50% or 75% of net risk premium
B EH50% 3K 75% Z XA earned from retained profits to

contingency reserve - (189,875) 189,875 - -
BRI BREERE R Release of contingency reserve to

retained profits - 164,024 (164,024) - -
F-Z-hE+=A=1—H4%%K Balance as at 31 December 2019 7,000,000 6,553,108 1,658,669 24,814 15,236,591
FE165Z273TFT s E NERE MBS IREKA —EBH The notes on pages 165 to 273 are an integral part of these consolidated

financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

BE-ZE-NE+ZA=+—-HLEE
for the year ended 31 December 2019

ZELZSZANERE cash flows from operating activities
ZE & Operating profit 336,534 66,944
FA TSI A% - Adjustment for:
FEMA Interest income (1,476,616) (1,243,385)
FEZ I Interest expense 881,654 632,864
A% B WA Dividend income 9 (20,019) (58,626)
REISCESFREUES Income from placements with
the Exchange Fund 9 (464,693) (184,934)
#rIH Depreciation 10 81,037 19,371
B RITRSIEAIT LR Amortisation of discount on
debt securities issued 64,834 60,637
BB % Charge of impairment allowances 12 934 134
IEHE Zm i M4 Amortisation of premium on
investment securities 6,137 13,675
NEEZEIT ARSI R Net (gain)/loss on investments at
(Wezk),/SHEI fair value through profit or loss 9 (33,037) 13,500
TRITAEANFEES Change in fair value of
financial instruments (7,372) (10,947)
HEUAFEZ LI A KA Net gain on disposal of investment
NGO A e at fair value through other
comprehensive income 9 (75) -
S IR BB RN T R B R Net gain on disposal of investment
W a3 8 at amortised cost - (192)
HERBRER~HTIHR Loss on disposal of fixed assets 510 -
B W B Interest received 1,381,156 1,148,331
B FLE Interest paid (766,248) (567,529)
RITAERE R RHGRENE Cash flows from operating activities before
Z2EWSHEINSRE changes in operating assets and liabilities (15,264) (110,157)
REH BB = A 8 E 8 Change in time deposits with original
FRES maturity of more than three months (1,338,000) (4,422,000)
RO KA B Change in remittance receivables 14,688 1,113
TS RON ~ 28 N H AR e Change in prepayments, deposits and
RN other assets (510,798) (762,688)
EREE Change in loan portfolio (486,895) 1,387,357
RIASTBRIR ~ R4 FF 2 R EoAh Change in accounts payable, accrued
hFRA D) expenses and other liabilities 152,718 (301,584)
RE A2 D) Change in insurance liabilities, net 1,856,793 3,470,306
LA ZEE Exchange differences 71,088 (11,553)
Z2EWWSFERAZIS Cash used in operation (255,670) (749,206)
BEATELI Taxation paid (1,339) (29,817)
ZEWSFERAZINE 2 Net cash used in operating activities (257,009) (779,023)
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SAEWMERER Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

2019 2018

B E F&T FET
Notes HK$000 HK$'000

REFHNZNERE Cash flows from investing activities
N5 & E & 7 Purchase of fixed assets 22 (38,337) (38,808)
TEANFEZHITAEAMD Purchase of investment securities at
2 EREEAIEHFIT R fair value through other

comprehensive income (1,679,612)

Purchase of investment securities at

(1,307,246)
WRARNFEEAIT AR

AUE 515 R fair value through profit or loss - (16,644)
TV 5= F2 6 B K 2R 51 A Purchase of investment securities
IEH % 5 at amortised cost (2,176,283) (1,855,361)
& K B ENIE 5% R ATS Proceeds from sale and redemption of
FRIN investment securities 3,675,539 3,465,235
INSCEESFR Placements with the Exchange Fund (4,682,000) (7,550,000)
B ETRRRE Dividend received from listed
investments 20,019 58,626
SRR 3= e e Net cash used in investing activities (4,880,674) (7,244,198)
BUASESN RII& 57 B 85 Net cash outflows before financing (5,137,683) (8,023,221)
REES RS RE cash flows from financing activities
RITIE R PTIE N Proceeds from bank borrowings 25,418,080 27,467,772
ERERTTIE R Repayment of bank borrowings (25,417,451) (27,467,772)
KT UE S FT1S 5 IN Proceeds from issue of debt securities 26 31,843,819 34,006,865
TEE 2 A 1TRSIE S Redemption of debt securities issued 26 (29,474,462) (31,289,536)
AR EE D Principal elements of lease payments (51,392) -
E RS I Proceeds from capital injection 27 - 5,000,000
B ASE A 2 Bl & Net cash generated from
financing activities 2,318,594 7,717,329
NeERERNELIE Net decrease in cash and
D E cash equivalents (2,819,089) (305,892)
FHNLERERINLIE Beginning cash and cash equivalents 14,777,801 15,086,190
CENUSRERILWMAE Effect of exchange rates on cash
A and cash equivalents (1,529) (2,497)
FRYUSRZERT WM E Ending cash and cash equivalents 14 11,957,183 14,777,801

$1655 273N e T N &M EIRKRM—25 »  The notes on pages 165 to 273 are an integral part of these consolidated
financial statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

il B

BERBIESBER AR (XAR) REWE
NE(GMARE) NEFEEMSRE - BI%
RARBEITINASMANETEM SRS
EN(BRAAEERN N RIBEWSIRE E
N FEENRIER) BERIAN2
RS EECR RGO E IR

REEE M S IMRIZALRABR G5 -
E LA R FETINR A & B R 7 K B SR
(BETASRTR)NEMRFELIPE -

B R ITBRIRSN » Yl L 47 & W 55 4R 3% AT R
RO BRERITETE  SRE2HRY
FrE MM ARG —2 -

e B EMSIRE EN BT SRR -
MRAETRBE2IHMEIT MERENA
AREFSITHERE IR BITIEL # M - %
RoR 2 FI M R B ZRH 5B 85 - SR1E R fib
HTHEEMSRREEZNTE - BEH
JEAMEFE -

Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements of The Hong Kong Mortgage
Corporation Limited (Company) and its subsidiaries (collectively
the Group) have been prepared in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards ((HKFRSs) which is a collective
term and includes all applicable individual Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (HKFRS), Hong Kong Accounting Standards
(HKASs) and Interpretations) issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants (HKICPA), accounting principles
generally accepted in Hong Kong and the requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared under
the historical cost convention, as modified by the revaluation
of financial assets and financial liabilities (including derivative
financial instruments) carried at fair value.

The accounting policies and the methods of computation used
in the preparation of these consolidated financial statements are
consistently applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise
Stated.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with HKFRSs
requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates. It also
requires management to exercise its judgement in the process
of applying the Group's accounting policies. The areas involving
a higher degree of judgement or complexity, or areas where
assumptions and estimates are significant to the consolidated
financial statements, are disclosed in Note 4.
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SREMEIREME Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2. FELITHE 2.
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Summary of significant accounting policies

2.1. Adoption of HKFRSs

New and amended standards effective on 1 January

HKFRS 16 “Leases”

HKFRS 16 supersedes HKAS 17 “Leases”,
HK(IFRIC) 4 “"Determining whether an
Arrangement contains a Lease”, HK(SIC) 15
“Operating Leases-Incentives” and HK(SIC)
27 "Evaluating the Substance of Transactions
Involving the Legal Form of a Lease”. The
standard sets out the principles for the
recognition, measurement, presentation and
disclosure of leases and requires lessees to
account for all leases under a single on-balance
sheet model. Lessor accounting under HKFRS 16
is substantially unchanged from HKAS 17. Lessors
will continue to classify leases as either operating
or finance leases using similar principles as in
HKAS 17.

The Group adopted HKFRS 16 using the modified
retrospective method of adoption with the
date of initial application of 1 January 2019.
Under this method, the standard is applied
retrospectively with the cumulative effect of
initially applying the standard recognised at the
date of initial application. The Group elected to
use the transition practical expedient allowing
the standard to be applied only to contracts that
were previously identified as leases applying
HKAS 17 and HK(IFRIC) 4 at the date of initial
application. The Group also elected to use the
recognition exemptions for lease contracts that,
at the commencement date, have a lease term of
12 months or less and do not contain a purchase
option (short-term leases), and lease contracts
for which the underlying asset is of low value
(leases of low-value assets).



RIFFBEM SRS EN
F165HIIE MR
LRI FHTET -

FZE—-—hhF—HF—H
KB BN SRS EN
F16SHFIT

In accordance with the transitional provisions of
HKFRS 16, comparative figures have not been
restated.

The effect of adoption of HKFRS 16 as at 1
January 2019 is as follows:

#hn,
Rl
Increase/
(decrease)
FET
HK$'000
B’ Assets
ER= Fixed assets
— EANRE~ — Right-of-use assets 105,090
— HEDEE — Leasehold improvement (5,782)
T ERIN  He RE AR Prepayments, deposits and other assets
— T FIn — Prepayments (2,940)
96,368
ki Liabilities
MNATIKIR « RIS R E MR Accounts payable, accrued expenses
and other liabilities
— HERGR — Lease liabilities 97,165
—%& — Provisions 1,047
98,212
N Equity
REB A Retained profits (1,844)
REABYILEEE L The Group has property lease contracts mainly
FERADAEYL - F for office premises. Before the adoption of
KNE B S RSN HKFRS 16, the Group classified leases (as lessee)
F165 281 - AEH({E at the inception date as an operating lease. In
NEBAAN) FIFi6 8BS an operating lease, the leased property was

HROEKNEEHRR -
EZEERT - B

WRFRAL BEN
REBEHMRNRELE
FHREFBINNEE X
H e ENEE RN
518 2 29 Bl A TR 3030
R RS TTSZ BTN IA

not capitalised and the lease payments were
recognised as rent expense in profit or loss on
a straight-line basis over the lease term. Any
prepaid rent and accrued rent were recognised
under prepayments and accrued expenses,
respectively.
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SREMEIREME Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RNEEM SRS EN
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Upon adoption of HKFRS 16, the Group applied a
single recognition and measurement approach
for all leases. The standard provides specific
transition requirements which has been applied
by the Group. In applying HKFRS 16 for the first
time, the Group has used the following practical
expedients permitted by the standard:

o applying a single discount rate to a
portfolio of leases with reasonably similar
characteristics;

o relying on previous assessments on
whether leases are onerous as alternative
to performing an impairment review —
there were no onerous contracts as at 1
January 2019;

o excluding initial direct costs for the
measurement of the right-of-use asset at
the date of initial application; and

o using hindsight in determining the lease
term where the contract contains options
to extend or terminate the lease.
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The Group recognised right-of-use assets and
lease liabilities for those leases previously
classified as operating leases, except for short-
term leases and leases of low-value assets. The
right-of-use assets were recognised based on the
carrying amount as if the standard had always
been applied, apart from the use of incremental
borrowing rate at the date of initial application.
Lease liabilities were recognised based on the
present value of the remaining lease payments,
discounted using the incremental borrowing
rate of 2.5% at the date of initial application. The
incremental borrowing rate is the rate that the
Group would have to pay to borrow the funds
necessary to obtain an asset of similar value in a
similar economic environment with similar terms
and conditions.

The operating lease commitments disclosed as
at 31 December 2018 were HK$104 million. Upon
the adoption of HKFRS16 on 1 January 2019, the
right-of-use assets recognised were HK$105
million while the lease liabilities recognised were
HK$97 million. The differences between the
operating lease commitments discounted using
the incremental borrowing rate and the total
lease liabilities recognised in the consolidated
statement of financial position at the date of
initial application of HKFRS 16 mainly related to
prepaid lease payments.

TN F A EAEN
FAATHALEFTEAFM

The other standards and amendments effective in 2019
have no material impact on the Group.
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SREMEIREME Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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New standards and amendments issued but not yet

effective
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A number of new standards and amendments to
standards are effective for annual periods beginning
after 1 January 2019, and have not been applied in
preparing these consolidated financial statements.
None of these is expected to have a significant effect
on the consolidated financial statements of the Group,
except the following set out below:

HKFRS 17 “Insurance Contracts” establishes
a comprehensive global insurance standard
which provides guidance on the recognition,
measurement, presentation and disclosures
of insurance contracts. The standard requires
entities to measure insurance contract liabilities
at their current fulfilment values. The Group is
yet to assess the full impact of the standard on
its financial position and results of operations.
The new standard is effective for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2021 and will
be applied retrospectively with restatement of
comparatives unless impracticable. However,
HKICPA is considering delaying the mandatory
implementation date by one year and may make
additional changes to the standard. At this stage,
the Group does not intend to adopt the standard
before its effective date.

There are no other HKFRSs that are not yet effective
that would be expected to have a material impact on
the Group.
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2.2. Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial
statements of the Company and all its subsidiaries made up
to 31 December 2019.

Subsidiaries are entities (including structured entities used
for issuing mortgage-backed securities, namely HKMC
Funding Corporation (1) Limited and Bauhinia MBS Limited)
over which the Group has control. The Group controls
an entity when the Group is exposed to, or has rights to,
variable returns from its involvement with the entity and
has the ability to affect those returns through its power over
the entity. Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the date
on which control is transferred to the Group. They are de-
consolidated from the date that control ceases.

Inter-company transactions, balances and unrealised gains
on transactions between group companies are eliminated.
Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the transaction
provides evidence of impairment of the asset transferred.
Accounting policies of the subsidiaries have been changed
where necessary to ensure consistency with the policies
adopted by the Group.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, it is accounted
for as a disposal of the entire interests in that subsidiary,
with a resulting gain or loss being recognised in profit or loss.

In the Company’s statement of financial position, the
investment in the subsidiaries is stated at cost less provision
for impairment allowances. The results of the subsidiaries
are accounted for by the Company on the basis of dividends
received and receivable.
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2:3.

2.4,

Interest income and expense

Interest income and expense are recognised in the income
statement for all interest bearing financial instruments using
the effective interest method.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial asset or a financial liability and
of allocating the interest income or interest expense over
the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate
that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments or
receipts through the expected life of the financial instrument
or, when appropriate, a shorter period to the gross carrying
amount of the financial asset or financial liability. When
calculating the effective interest rate, the Group estimates
cash flows considering all contractual terms of the financial
instrument but does not consider expected credit losses.
The calculation includes all fees and points paid or received
between parties to the contract that are an integral part of
the effective interest rate, transaction costs and all other
premiums or discounts.

Interest income is calculated by applying the effective
interest rate to the gross carrying amount of a financial asset
except for financial assets that subsequently become credit-
impaired. For credit-impaired financial assets, the effective
interest rate is applied to the net carrying amount of the
financial asset (after deduction of the loss allowance).

Other income other than those arising from
insurance and guarantee contracts under Note 2.21

(@) Feeincome

Fees are generally recognised on an accrual basis
when the service has been provided. Upfront
arrangement fees that are an integral part of the
effective interest rate are recognised as an adjustment
to the effective interest rate in determining interest
income on the loans.
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Dividend income

Dividend income is recognised when the right to
receive payment is established.

Income from placements with the Exchange Fund

Changes in fair value of the placements with the
Exchange Fund classified as “financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss” is recognised as income or
loss in the year in which they arise.

2.5. Financial assets

@)

Classification

The Group classifies its financial assets in the following
measurement categories:

° those to be measured subsequently at fair value
(either through other comprehensive income
(OCl), or through profit or loss), and

. those to be measured at amortised cost.

The classification depends on the entity’s business
model for managing the financial assets and the
contractual terms of the cash flows.

For assets measured at fair value, gains and losses
will either be recorded in profit or loss or OCI. For
investments in debt instruments, this will depend on
the business model in which the investment is held.

The Group has classified the placements with the
Exchange Fund as financial asset at fair value through
profit or loss.

The Group reclassifies investment securities when

and only when its business model for managing those
assets changes.
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Measurement

At initial recognition, the Group measures a financial
asset at its fair value plus, in the case of a financial
asset not at fair value through profit or loss, transaction
costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition of
the financial asset. Transaction costs of financial assets
carried at fair value through profit or loss are expensed
in profit or loss.

Financial assets with embedded derivatives are
considered in their entirety when determining whether
their cash flows are solely payment of principal and
interest.

Subsequent measurement of the Group’s financial
assets are classified into the following categories,
depending on the Group’s business model for
managing the asset and the cash flow characteristics
of the asset:

. Amortised cost: Assets that are held for
collection of contractual cash flows where
those cash flows represent solely payments of
principal and interest are measured at amortised
cost. A gain or loss on a debt investment that is
subseqguently measured at amortised cost and is
not part of a hedging relationship is recognised in
profit or loss when the asset is derecognised or
impaired.
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o Fair value through other comprehensive income
(FVOCI): Assets that are held for collection
of contractual cash flows and for selling the
financial assets, where the assets’ cash flows
represent solely payments of principal and
interest, are measured at FVOCI. Movements
in the carrying amount are taken through OCI,
except for the recognition of impairment gains
or losses, interest revenue and foreign exchange
gains and losses which are recognised in profit
or loss. When the financial asset is derecognised,
the cumulative gain or loss previously recognised
in OClI is reclassified from equity to profit or loss
and recognised in other gains or losses.

. Fair value through profit or loss (FVPL): Assets
that do not meet the criteria for amortised cost
or FVOCI are measured at FVPL. A gain or l0oss
on investment that is subsequently measured
at FVPL and is not part of a hedging relationship
is recognised in profit or loss and presented net
in the income statement within other gains or
losses in the period in which it arises.

Impairment

The Group assesses on a forward-looking basis the
expected credit losses (ECLS) associated with its assets
carried at amortised cost and FVOCI. The impairment
methodology applied depends on whether there has
been a significant increase in credit risk. Note 3.2
provides more details of how the ECLS is measured.
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2.6. Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities are classified into two categories: financial
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss and other
financial liabilities. All the financial liabilities are classified at
inception and recognised initially at fair value.

Debt securities issued in the statement of financial position
include (i) notes issued under the Debt Issuance Programme
(DIP), and (ii) notes issued under the Medium Term Note
(MTN) Programme.

These notes are initially designated as either (i) financial
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss or (ii) other
financial liabilities.

The notes (including those issued with embedded derivative
instruments) designated as at fair value through profit or loss
upon initial recognition are carried at fair value, with changes
in fair value being recorded in the income statement. Those
notes which are designated as hedged items under a fair
value hedge are adjusted for the fair value changes subject
to the risk being hedged.

The notes designated as other financial liabilities are initially
recognised at fair value, which is the fair value of the
consideration received, net of transaction costs incurred.
The notes are subsequently stated at amortised costs; any
difference between proceeds net of transaction costs and
the redemption value is recognised in the income statement
over the period of the debt securities using the effective
interest method.

On redemption/repurchase of the notes, the resulting gains
or losses, being the difference between the redemption/
repurchase amount and the carrying amount, are recognised
in the income statement in the period in which the
redemption/repurchase takes place.
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2.7.

2.8.

Recognition and de-recognition of financial
instruments

Purchases and sales of investment securities are recognised
on the trade date, the date on which the Group purchases
or sells the assets. Loan portfolio and receivables are
recognised when cash is advanced to the borrowers.
Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to receive
cash flows from the financial assets have expired or where
the Group has transferred substantially all risks and rewards
of ownership.

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
and debt securities issued are recognised on the trade
date. Other financial liabilities are recognised when such
obligations arise. Financial liabilities are derecognised from
the statement of financial position when and only when the
obligation specified in the contract is discharged, cancelled
or expired.

Derivative financial instruments and hedge
accounting

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value on the date
on which a derivative contract is entered into and are
subsequently remeasured at their fair value. Fair values are
obtained from market prices in active markets, including
recent market transactions, and valuation techniques,
including discounted cash flow models and options pricing
models, as appropriate. All derivatives are carried as assets
when fair value is positive and as liabilities when fair value
is negative. Interest receivables and payables arising from
derivatives are separately presented in the statement of
financial position.

The best evidence of the fair value of a derivative at initial

recognition is the transaction price (i.e. the fair value of the
consideration given or received).
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Certain derivatives embedded in financial liabilities are
treated as separate derivatives when their economic
characteristics and risks are not closely related to those of
the host contract and the host contract is not carried at fair
value through profit or loss. These embedded derivatives are
measured at fair value with changes in fair value recognised
in the income statement.

The method of recognising the resulting fair value gain or
loss depends on whether the derivative is designated as a
hedging instrument, and if so, the nature of the item being
hedged. The Group designates certain derivatives as either:
(i) hedges of the fair value of recognised assets or liabilities
or firm commitments (fair value hedge); or, (ii) hedges of
highly probable future cash flows attributable to a recognised
asset or liability, or a forecast transaction (cash flow
hedge). Hedge accounting is used for derivatives designated
in this way provided certain criteria are met.

The Group documents, at the inception of the transaction,
the relationship between hedging instruments and hedged
items, as well as its risk management objective and strategy
for undertaking various hedge transactions. The Group also
documents its assessment, both at hedge inception and on
an ongoing basis, of whether the derivatives that are used
in hedging transactions are highly effective in offsetting
changes in fair values or cash flows of hedged items.

(@) Fair value hedge

Changes in the fair value of derivatives that are
designated and qualified as fair value hedges are
recorded in the income statement, together with any
changes in the fair value of the hedged asset or liability
that are attributable to the hedged risk.

If the hedge no longer meets the criteria for hedge
accounting, the adjustment to the carrying amount of
a hedged item for which the effective interest method
is used, is amortised to income statement over the
period to maturity.
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(b) Cash flow hedge

The effective portion of changes in the fair value of
derivatives that are designated and qualified as cash
flow hedges are recognised in OCI and accumulated
in equity. The gain or loss relating to the ineffective
portion is recognised immediately in the income
statement.

Amounts accumulated in equity are recycled to the
income statement in the periods in which the hedged
item will affect income statement.

When a hedging instrument expires or is sold, or
when a hedge no longer meets the criteria for hedge
accounting, any cumulative gain or loss existing in
equity at that time remains in equity and is recognised
when the forecast transaction is ultimately recognised
in the income statement. When a forecast transaction
iS no longer expected to occur, the cumulative gain
or loss that was reported in equity is immediately
transferred to the income statement.

(c) Derivatives not qualified as hedges for accounting
purposes

Derivative instruments entered into as economic
hedges that do not qualify for hedge accounting are
held at fair value through profit or loss. Changes in the
fair value of any derivative instrument are recognised
immediately in the income statement.

2.9. Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount
reported in the statement of financial position when there is
a legally enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts
and there is an intention to settle on a net basis or realise
the asset and settle the liability simultaneously. The legally
enforceable right must not be contingent on future events
and must be enforceable in the normal course of business
and in the event of default, insolvency or bankruptcy of the
Company or the counterparty.
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2.10.Repossessed assets

2.1

Repossessed collateral assets are accounted as assets held
for sale and reported in “Other assets” and the relevant
loans are derecognised. The repossessed collateral assets
are measured at lower of carrying amount and fair value less
Ccosts to sell.

.Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent
with the internal reporting provided to the chief operating
decision maker. The chief operating decision maker is the
person or group that allocates resources to and assesses
the performance of the operating segments of an entity. The
Group has determined the Chief Executive Officer as its chief
operating decision maker.

2.12.Foreign currency translation

(@ Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the financial statements of each
of the Group’s entities are measured using the
currency of the primary economic environment in
which the entity operates (functional currency).
The consolidated financial statements are presented
in thousands of units of Hong Kong dollars (HK$'000)
which is the Company’s functional and the Company’s
and the Group’s presentation currency.

(b) Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the
functional currency using the exchange rates prevailing
at the dates of the transactions. Foreign exchange
gains and losses resulting from the settlement of
such transactions and from the translation at period-
end exchange rates of monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are recognised in
the income statement.
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Monetary items denominated in foreign currency are
translated with the closing rate as at the reporting
date. Non-monetary items measured at historical cost
denominated in a foreign currency are translated with
the exchange rate as at the date of initial recognition;
non-monetary items in a foreign currency that are
measured at fair value are translated using the
exchange rates at the date when the fair value was
determined.

In the case of changes in the fair value of monetary
assets denominated in foreign currency classified
as FVOCI, a distinction is made between translation
differences resulting from changes in amortised cost of
the security and other changes in the carrying amount
of the security. Translation differences related to
changes in the amortised cost are recognised in profit
or loss, and other changes in the carrying amount,
except impairment, are recognised in OCI.

Translation differences on non-monetary financial
instruments held at FVPL are reported as part of the
fair value gain or loss. Translation differences on non-
monetary financial instruments classified as FVOCI, are
included in the fair value reserve in equity.

2.13.Fixed assets

Fixed assets are stated at historical cost less accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses. Historical cost includes
expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of
the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount
or are recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate,
only when it is probable that future economic benefits
associated with the item will flow to the Group and the cost
of the item can be measured reliably. The carrying amount
of the replaced part is derecognised. All other repairs and
maintenance are charged to the income statement during
the financial period in which they are incurred.
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Depreciation is calculated using the straight-line method
to allocate their cost to their residual values over their
estimated useful lives.

Leasehold improvements over the unexpired period

of the lease

Furniture and fixtures over the unexpired period
of the lease

Computer 3years

Office equipment 3years

Motor vehicle 4 years

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed,
and adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each reporting
period.

Gain and loss on disposal is determined by comparing
proceeds with carrying amount. It is included in the income
Statement.

2.14.Impairment of investment in subsidiaries

Impairment testing of the investment in a subsidiary is
required upon receiving a dividend from that subsidiary if
the dividend exceeds the total comprehensive income of the
subsidiary concerned in the period the dividend is declared
or if the carrying amount of the subsidiary in the Company's
statement of financial position exceeds the carrying amount
of the subsidiary’s net assets including goodwill in the
consolidated statement of financial position.

2.15.Current and deferred tax

The tax expense for the period comprises current and
deferred tax. Tax is recognised in the income statement,
except to the extent that it relates to items recognised in OCI
or directly in equity. In this case, the tax is also recognised in
OCI or directly in equity.

Current tax is calculated on the basis of the tax rates enacted
or substantively enacted at the end of the reporting period.
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Deferred tax is provided in full, using the liability method,
on temporary differences arising between the tax bases
of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in
the consolidated financial statements. Deferred tax is
determined using tax rates that have been enacted or
substantially enacted by the end of the reporting period and
are expected to apply when the related deferred tax asset is
realised or the deferred tax liability is settled.

Deferred tax assets are recognised where it is probable
that future taxable profits will be available against which
the temporary differences can be utilised. Deferred tax is
provided on temporary differences arising from investment
in the subsidiary, except where the timing of the reversal
of the temporary difference is controlled by the Group and
it is probable that the difference will not be reversed in the
foreseeable future.

Deferred tax related to cash flow hedges, which are charged
or credited directly to OCI, is also credited or charged
directly to OCI and is subsequently recognised in the income
statement together with the deferred gain or loss.

2.16.Employee benefits

(@) Employee leave entitlements

Employee entitlements to annual leave are recognised
when they accrue to employees. An accrual is made
for the estimated liability for annual leave and long-
service leave as a result of services rendered by
employees up to the end of each reporting period.

Employee entitlements to sick leave, maternity or
paternity leave are recognised when the absence
occurs.

(b) Bonus plans

The Group recognises a liability and an expense
for bonuses, based on a formula that takes into
consideration the profit after certain adjustments.
The Group recognises a provision where contractually
obliged or where there is a past practice that has
created constructive obligations.
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() BREHRHE (c) Pension obligations
N E B % S 08 ) 1 A TR E 1T X The Group offers a mandatory provident fund scheme
RATHKITL - TR R and a defined contribution scheme, the assets of which
FBEHEYERAREEREZ are generally held in separate trustee — administered
BEE&RFB -  ZFERAKRSITE funds. These pension plans are generally funded by
BHERRAREFAMK - payments from employees and by the Group.
ANER A 3T 58 6l M AR B it R R The Group’s contributions to the mandatory provident
FLTE M SR 0 B FR T = AR fund scheme and defined contribution scheme are
HIVEZH © expensed as incurred.

217.%& 2.17.Provisions

i 2 5= B T AsF R o 18 S5 4 i 3 RO A A2 Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present

ST T - MBITRAERAESFE legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events

R+ BRI& BRI - N where it is more likely than not that an outflow of resources

AL R o will be required to settle the obligation, and the amount has

been reliably estimated.

LA REZMEERL - K& Where the effect of the time value of money is material,

ETERE S TREFT % I S ABR B BT L provisions are measured at the present value of the

3 (R 2 B T 45 3 SRAE € 2 A B expenditure expected to be required to settle the obligation

BERENRK 2T ITEZ2IEITE - using a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments
of the time value of money and the risks specific to the
obligation.
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2.18.Leases

@)

As a lessee

Accounting policies applicable from 1 January 2019

() Right-of-use assets

The Group recognises right-of-use assets at
the commencement date of the lease (i.e., the
date the underlying asset is available for use).
Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less
any accumulated depreciation and impairment
losses, and adjusted for any remeasurement
of lease liabilities. The cost of right-of-use
assets includes the amount of lease liabilities
recognised, initial direct costs incurred, and lease
payments made at or before the commencement
date less any lease incentives received. Unless
the Group is reasonably certain to obtain
ownership of the leased asset at the end of the
lease term, the recognised right-of-use assets
are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the
shorter of its estimated useful life and the lease

term.

Right-of-use assets are tested for impairment
whenever events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying amount may not be
recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised for
the amount by which the asset’s carrying amount
exceeds it recoverable amount. The recoverable
amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less

costs of disposal and value in use.
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Lease liabilities

At the commencement date of the lease, the
Group recognises lease liabilities measured at the
present value of lease payments to be made over
the lease term. The lease payments include fixed
payments less any lease incentives receivable.
The lease payments also include the exercise
price of a purchase option reasonably certain
to be exercised by the Group and payments of
penalties for terminating a lease, if the lease
term reflects the Group exercising the option to
terminate.

In calculating the present value of lease
payments, the Group uses the incremental
borrowing rate at the lease commencement
date if the interest rate implicit in the lease is not
readily determinable. After the commencement
date, the amount of lease liabilities is increased
to reflect the accretion of interest and reduced
for the lease payments made. In addition, the
carrying amount of lease liabilities is remeasured
if there is a modification.

Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Group applies the short-term lease
recognition exemption to its short-term leases
with a lease term of 12 months or less from
the commencement date and do not contain a
purchase option. It also applies the lease of low-
value assets recognition exemption to leases of
assets that are considered as low value. Lease
payments on short-term leases and leases of
low-value assets are recognised as expense on a
straight-line basis over the lease term.



F=

E-NE—A—BaEMA

V2R

0]

(i

ZEMHL

ZEMBNEHHE A
EHE ML KD KB
K ER 2 Y - REH
TEUABAFMITL
KEMEN  ZREHAM
& R EEAL TEE
mEEE) THRNAE
20X B WS RIFR -

MEEMRLN THLYHF
B 42 1E - MAE 2 T
HAE AT RE T LI
REREFIANITF X -

BAEL

R 5 AH 20 45 i AN £ T o
EB A D EY 4 KA X
Bo B B 4k 2 & 7= AH 4
RERAFENLBEAS
AT ALY

Accounting policies applied prior to 1 January 2019

()  Operating leases

Leases in which a significant portion of the risks
and rewards of ownership are retained by the
lessor are classified as operating leases. The
Group entered into operating leases primarily
as lessee. Payments made under operating
leases (net of any incentives received from the
lessor) are charged to the income statement on a

straight-line basis over the period of the lease.

When an operating lease is terminated before the
lease period has expired, any payment required
to be made to the lessor by way of penalty is
recognised as an expense in the period in which

termination takes place.

(i) Finance leases

Leases of assets where the Group has
substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership are classified as finance leases. The
Group entered into finance leases primarily as

lessor.
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(b) Asalessor

When the Group acts as a lessor, it determines at lease
inception whether each lease is a finance lease or
an operating lease. A lease is classified as a finance
lease if it transfers substantially all the risks and
rewards incidental to the ownership of an underlying
assets to the lessee. Finance leases are capitalised as
receivables at the lease’s commencement at the lower
of the fair value of the leased property and the present
value of the minimum lease payments. The difference
between the gross receivable and the present value
of the receivable is recognised as unearned finance
income. Lease income is recognised over the term
of the lease using the net investment method, which
reflects a constant periodic rate of return. Hire
purchase contracts having the characteristics of a
finance lease are accounted for in the same manner as
finance leases. Impairment allowances are accounted
for in accordance with the accounting policies for loan
portfolio as set out in Note 3.2.

2.19.Cash and cash equivalents

For the purposes of the statement of cash flows, cash and
cash equivalents comprise balances with less than three
months’ maturity from the date of acquisition, including
cash and balances with banks that are readily convertible to
known amounts of cash and are subject to an insignificant
risk of change in value.

2.20.Financial guarantee contracts

Financial guarantees are contracts that require the Group
to make specified payments to reimburse the holder for
a loss it incurs because a specified debtor fails to make
payments when due, in accordance with the terms of a debt
instrument.

Financial guarantee contracts are accounted for as insurance
contracts in accordance with the accounting policies set out
in Note 2.21(b).
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2.21.Insurance and other guarantee contracts

@)

Mortgage insurance contracts

The mortgage insurance business under the Mortgage
Insurance Programme (MIP) of the Group is accounted
for on the annual accounting basis. Under the annual
accounting approach, the Group makes provisions
based on credible estimates of future income and
outgoings to determine the underwriting result for the
current accounting period. The underwriting result
includes any adjustments arising from the correction of
the previous estimates.

Gross premiums represent direct business written
through Authorized Institutions (Als) as defined in
accordance with the Banking Ordinance during an
accounting period. The gross premiums after deduction
of discounts and refunds, include the reinsurance
premiums to be paid to the approved reinsurers, the
risk premiums and servicing fees earned by the Group.
The net premiums are recognised as income on a
time-apportioned basis during the time the insurance
coverage is effective.

Unearned premiums represent that portion of net
premiums written which are estimated to relate to risks
and services subsequent to the end of each reporting
period.

Provisions are made for outstanding claims, claims
incurred but not reported and loss reserve at the end
of each reporting period. For risk-sharing business,
50% or 75% of the net risk premiums earned in a year
depending on the respective product is set aside
as a Contingency Reserve for a period of time in
accordance with relevant regulatory guidelines and as
considered appropriate by the directors. Withdrawals
from the Contingency Reserve can be made to meet
excess claims at any time during the period. At the
end of the reporting period, the unutilised balance of
the Contingency Reserve can be released to retained
profits.
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Reinsurance contracts refer to contracts entered into
by the Group with reinsurers under which the Group
is compensated for losses on one or more insurance
contracts issued by the Group. Benefits to which
the Group is entitled under its reinsurance contracts
held are recognised as reinsurance assets. These
assets consist of claims recoverable from reinsurers
and receivables that are dependent on the expected
claims and benefits arising under the related reinsured
insurance contracts. Amounts recoverable from or
due to reinsurers are measured consistently with the
amounts associated with the reinsured insurance
contracts and in accordance with the terms of each
reinsurance contract. Reinsurance assets are primarily
premiums for reinsurance contracts and are amortised
as an expense.

A reinsurance asset is impaired if there is objective
evidence, as a result of an event that occurred after
initial recognition of the reinsurance asset, that the
Group may not receive all amounts due to it under the
terms of the contract, and the impact on the amounts
that the Group will receive from the reinsurer can be
reliably measured.

commissions are recognised in the income statement
as incurred.

Other guarantee and insurance contracts

The Group provides financial guarantees for loan
facilities provided to eligible small and medium
enterprises (SMEs) and non-listed enterprises, in
return for a guarantee fee, insurance coverage on
reverse mortgage loans and policy reverse mortgage
loans provided to elderly people, and on lump-sum
loans provided to owners of properties of subsidised
housing schemes primarily for land premium
settlement, in return for an insurance premium.
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50% of the guarantee fee earned and 75% of the
insurance premium earned in a year is set aside
as a Contingency Reserve for a period of time in
accordance with relevant regulatory guidelines and as
considered by directors to be appropriate. Withdrawals
from the Contingency Reserve can be made to meet
excess claims at any time during the period. At the
end of the reporting period, the unutilised balance of
the Contingency Reserve can be released to retained
profits.

In respect of insurance coverage on reverse mortgage
loans, the Group entered into reinsurance contract
with a reinsurer. Reinsurance contracts refer to
contracts entered into by the Group with reinsurers
under which the Group is compensated for losses
OoNn one or more insurance contracts issued by the
Group. Benefits to which the Group is entitled under
its reinsurance contracts held are recognised as
reinsurance assets. Reinsurance assets are primarily
premiums for reinsurance contracts and are amortised
as an expense.

A reinsurance asset is impaired if there is objective
evidence, as a result of an event that occurred after
initial recognition of the reinsurance asset, that the
Group may not receive all amounts due to it under the
terms of the contract, and the impact on the amounts
that the Group will receive from the reinsurer can be
reliably measured.
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(c) Life insurance contracts

Premiums are recognised as income when the cash is
received from the annuitant, and the policy is issued
and becomes effective after the completion of all the
underwriting procedures.

Insurance contract liabilities are recognised when
contracts are entered into and premiums are
recognised. These liabilities are measured by using
the Modified Net Level Premium Valuation method for
long term business in accordance with the provision of
the Insurance (Determination of Long Term Liabilities)
Rules. The movements in liabilities at each reporting
date are recorded in the income statement.

Insurance claims reflect the cost of all annuity
payments, surrenders, withdrawals and death claims
arising during the year. Surrenders, withdrawals and
death claims are recorded on the basis of notifications
received. Annuity payments are recorded when due.

The Group will assess if its recognised liabilities are adequate
on each reporting date, using the current estimates of
future cash flows under these contracts. If the assessment
shows that the carrying amount of its insurance liabilities are
inadequate in the light of the estimated future cash flows,
the shortfall shall be recognised in the income statement.

2.22.Dividend distribution

Dividend proposed or declared after the end of each
reporting period is disclosed as a liability in the period in
which the dividends are approved by shareholder.
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3.

Financial risk management

3.1. Strategy in using financial instruments

The major activities of the Group are (i) to purchase portfolios
of mortgages or loans; (i) to raise financing for its purchase
of assets through issuance of debt securities; (iii) to operate
a centralised microfinance platform to support microfinance
loans; (iv) to develop new business initiative on infrastructure
financing; (v) to provide mortgage insurance cover in respect
of mortgage loans and reverse mortgage loans originated by
participating lenders and secured on residential properties
in Hong Kong, life insurance policies and other assets, if
applicable; (vi) to operate a scheme for the Government of
the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region (Government)
providing guarantee on loans advanced by participating Als
to eligible SMEs and local non-listed enterprises; and (vii)
to offer life annuity products in or from Hong Kong. By their
nature, the Group's activities are principally related to the
use of financial instruments including cash, loans, debts and
derivatives.

The Group's activities expose it to a variety of financial
risks and those activities involve the analysis, evaluation,
acceptance and management of some degree of risk
or combination of risks. The Group manages the risks
in a prudent manner in sustaining the Group’s financial
performance.

The Corporate Risk Management Committee is set up at
group level to provide oversight of the enterprise-wide
risk matters including financial and non-financial risks.
The policies and limits for various risks are monitored and
reviewed regularly by various management committees
of the Company, including Infrastructure Financing and
Securitisation Investment Committee (IFSIC), Credit
Committee, Asset and Liability Committee (ALCO),
Transaction Approval Committee (TAC) and Operational
Risk Committee (ORC) which report to the Corporate Risk
Management Committee.
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The IFSIC executes overight and approval authority over all
investments in infrastructure loans. The Credit Committee
oversees the credit policies and standards for asset
acquisition and Microfinance Scheme. The ALCO oversees
the implementation of market risk management and
investment guidelines approved by the Board of Directors.
The TAC conducts an in-depth analysis of pricing economics
and associated risks for business transactions, whilst taking
into consideration the latest market conditions and business
strategies approved by the Board. The ORC is responsible
for ensuring that all business entities and line functions
maintain an effective operational risk and internal control
framework. The ORC is also responsible for providing
directions and resolving issues related to policies, controls
and management of operational issues referred to by line
functions, as well as ensuring prompt and appropriate
corrective action in response to audit findings related to
operational risks or internal controls. In addition, Group
Internal Audit Department is responsible for the independent
review of the internal control systems of the Group.

The Group established Longevity Risk Committee to manage
longevity risk of the Group. Its duties include approving
longevity risk management policies and hedging transactions
and reviewing longevity experiences and exposures of the
Group. It also monitors and analyses the general trend,
technological changes and their implications for human
longevity.

In respect of general insurance business, a Risk Committee
is established by HKMC Insurance Limited (HKMCI) as an
independent oversight committee to assist its Board to
oversee implementation of risk management framework
and manage all risks faced by the HKMCI. For HKMC Annuity
Limited (HKMCA), a Risk Committee is established to
manage the enterprise-wide risk matters, including financial
and non-financial risks.

The most important types of risks are credit risk, market risk
which includes currency risk, interest rate risk and equity
price risk, liquidity risk and insurance risk.
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3.2. Credit risk

The Group'’s principal financial assets are its cash and short-
term funds, investment securities, placements with the
Exchange Fund and loan portfolio. The credit risk on liquid
funds and investment securities is limited because the credit
ratings of the counterparties, mainly sovereigns, quasi-
sovereign agencies, banks and companies, should meet the
minimum requirement in accordance with the investment
guidelines approved by the Board of Directors. The capital of
the HKMCA and the HKMCI as well as premium receipts of
the HKMCA are placed with the Exchange Fund managed by
the Hong Kong Monetary Authority (HKMA). The credit risk
on the placements with the Exchange Fund is very limited as
it is exposure to the Government.

The Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable to its loan
portfolio, which is the risk that a loan borrower will be unable
to pay amounts in full when due. The Group therefore has a
prudent policy for managing its exposure to credit risk.

To maintain the quality of the asset portfolios, the Group
adheres to a prudent risk management framework to (i)
select Approved Sellers with established criteria, (i) adopt
prudent asset purchasing criteria, (iii) conduct effective
and in-depth due diligence reviews, (iv) implement robust
project structures and financing documentation, (v) perform
an ongoing monitoring and reviewing mechanism, and
(vi) ensure adequate protection for higher-risk assets or
transactions.

The Group undertakes ongoing credit review with special
attention paid to problem loans. Operation units will monitor
these loans and take recovery action such as establishing
relief plan with borrowers in order to maximise recoveries.
Loan impairment assessment is performed regularly and
impairment allowance is charged to income statement in
accordance with the guidelines approved by the Credit
Committee.
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Collateral and other credit enhancements

The Group has implemented guidelines on the acceptability
of specific classes of collateral on credit risk mitigation,
which are subject to regular review.

Loan portfolio

The principal collateral types for mortgage portfolio mainly
consist of properties located in Hong Kong and the deferred
consideration (Note 24). For finance lease receivable, the
collateral types include taxi and public light bus licenses.
Mortgage portfolio and finance lease receivable are generally
fully secured by collateral. The current collateral value of
properties is determined with the use of public indices on a
portfolio basis. The principal collateral types for infrastructure
loan portfolio mainly consist of security interests in the
assets of the borrowers and assignment of key project
documents and/or charge over bank accounts but the actual
Security varies projects to projects. For microfinance loans,
no collateral is generally sought.

Time deposits with banks, investment securities and
placements with the Exchange Fund

Collaterals are generally not sought for time deposits with
banks as the exposures are considered to be low risk due
to the nature of the counterparties and short term maturity.
Investment securities and placements with the Exchange
Fund are generally unsecured.
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Derivative financial instruments

The Group enters into International Swaps and Derivatives
Association master agreement with all counterparties for
derivative transactions where each party will be able to settle
all outstanding amounts on a net basis in the event of default
of the other party. The Group also executed Credit Support
Annex (CSA) with its major counterparties in conjunction
with the master agreement. Under CSA, collateral is passed
between the parties to mitigate the counterparty risk
inherent in outstanding positions.

For financial instruments such as derivatives, exposures
are monitored against counterparty risk limits established
in accordance with the investment guidelines and credit
risk policy of the Group. These counterparty risk limits
are subject to regular review by the Credit Committee
on an annual basis. At any one time, the amount subject
to counterparty risk is limited to the current fair value of
instruments favourable to the Group (i.e. assets with positive
fair value), which in relation to derivatives is only a small
fraction of the contract, or notional values used to express
the volume of instruments outstanding. This counterparty
risk exposure is managed as part of the overall credit limits
with counterparties, together with potential exposures from
market movements.

Mortgage insurance contracts, other guarantee and
insurance contracts

The details are disclosed in Note 3.5.

Settlement risk arises in any situation where a payment in
cash, securities or equities is made in the expectation of a
corresponding receipt in cash, securities or equities. Daily
settlement limits are established for each counterparty to
cover the aggregate of all settlement risk arising from the
Group's market transactions on any single day.
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Expected credit loss (ECL) measurement

For financial assets, the following credit risk modelling
applies:

The Group considers the probability of default upon
initial recognition of asset and whether there has been
a significant increase in credit risk on an ongoing basis
throughout each reporting period. To assess whether there
is a significant increase in credit risk, the Group compares
the risk of a default occurring on the asset as at the
reporting date with the risk of default as at the date of initial
recognition. It considers available reasonable and supportive
forward-looking information with the following indicators
incorporated:

o External credit rating (as far as available);

o Actual or expected significant adverse changes
in business, financial or economic conditions that
are expected to cause a significant change to the
borrower’s ability to meet its obligations;

° Significant increases in credit risk on other financial
instruments of the same borrower,

o Significant changes in the value of the collateral
supporting the obligation or in the quality of third-party
guarantees or credit enhancements; and

° Significant changes in the expected performance and
behaviour of the borrower, including changes in the
payment status of borrowers in the group and changes
in the financial conditions of the borrower.
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A three-stage approach to measuring ECLS is applied on
loan portfolio, cash and short-term funds and investment
securities accounted for at amortised cost and FVOCI.
Financial assets migrate through the following three stages
based on the change in credit quality since initial recognition:

Stage 1: 12-month ECLS

For exposures where there has not been a significant
increase in credit risk since initial recognition and that are
not credit impaired upon origination, the portion of the
lifetime ECL associated with the probability of default events
occurring within the next 12 months is recognised.

Stage 2: Lifetime ECLs — not credit impaired

For credit exposures where there has been a significant
increase in credit risk since initial recognition but that are not
credit impaired, a lifetime ECL is recognised.

Stage 3: Lifetime ECLs — credit impaired

Financial assets are assessed as credit impaired when
one or more events that have a detrimental impact on the
estimated future cash flows of that asset have occurred.
For financial assets that have become credit impaired, a
lifetime ECL is recognised and interest income is calculated
by applying the effective interest rate to the amortised cost
(net of impairment provision) rather than the gross carrying
amount.

ECLs are derived from unbiased and probability-weighted
estimates of expected loss. The amount of the ECLS is
recognised using an impairment allowance account with the
movement in this account charged to income statement.
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At initial recognition, impairment allowance is required for
ECLs resulting from default events that are possible within
the next 12 months (12-month ECLS). At each reporting
date, the Group assesses whether there has been a
significant increase in credit risk for financial assets since
initial recognition by comparing the risk of default occurring
over the expected life between the reporting date and
the date of initial recognition. In the event of a significant
increase in credit risk, impairment allowance is required
from all possible default events over the expected life of
the financial assets (Lifetime ECLS). If, in a subsequent
period, credit quality improves and reverses any previously
assessed significant increase in credit risk since origination,
then the impairment allowance reverts from lifetime ECLS to
12-month ECLS.

Financial assets are written off when there is no reasonable
expectation of recovery, such as a debtor failing to engage
in a repayment plan with the Group. Loans are written off
after all the necessary procedures have substantially been
completed and the amount of the loss has been determined.
Where loans have been written off, the Group continues
to engage in enforcement activity to attempt to recover
the receivable due. Where recoveries are made, these are
recognised in profit or loss.

Interest and remittance receivables, prepayments, deposits
and other assets are also subject to the impairment
requirements of HKFRS 9, and the identified impairment
allowance was immaterial.

200 The Hong Kong Mortgage Corporation Limited Annual Report 2019



b i)

K HH
=k,
=<

S
h
B 51

AEHTBED
HERIBER LA T -

]|
Category

E—E

Stage 1

E_ME&

Stage 2

E=HE

Stage 3

JEE
Write-off

G RIEEERNR Y
LA K i {a]
RS ik & o

b5 R BT R AR A

(@  Loan portfolio

i E & 255

The Group uses three categories for loans which
reflect their credit risk and how the loan loss provision
is determined for each of those categories.

A summary of the assumptions underpinning the

Group’s ECL model on loans is as follows:

KRHE N
Definition of category

BRARARNGEIR - FHFERBENEBITEL
Eﬂﬁ/ﬂb% ©

Borrowers have a low risk of default and a
strong capacity to meet contractual cash flows.

%‘%Mﬂéﬁﬂkﬁﬁﬂ%ibu VPSP / DN
08 BRI 30K - NIERTE = o XU s & Z 3

e

Loans for which there is a significant increase

in credit risk; as significant increase in credit

risk is presumed if interest and/or principal

repayments are more than 30 days past due.

FEK / AR EFEEA0XR - fEFKAM =3k
W el -

Interest and/or principal repayments are 90
days past due, borrowers with bankruptcy or
properties repossessed.

FHI A EEA AU e HA FE f / AN B 1B K o

There is no reasonable expectation of recovery
on the delinquent interest and/or principal
repayments.

WIATUEE 52 5 IR R M E Al
Basis for recognition of
ECL provision

12N ATERE DT 5 10 (R0 & 7= B9
B H DT 120 A - TR = ik
HIAAFEHITE < )

12-month ECLS (Where the expected
lifetime of an asset is less than
12 months, expected losses are
measured at its expected lifetime.)

THFERER TR - RRKEETR

(=1

Lifetime ECLs — not credit impaired

THFRERSR—ERE

Lifetime ECLs — credit impaired

JEER T
Asset is written off
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However, in certain cases, the Group will also consider
a loan to be in default when internal or external
information indicates that the Group is unlikely to
receive the outstanding contractual amounts in full
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Over the term of the loans, the Group accounts for
its credit risk by appropriately providing for ECLS on
a timely basis. In calculating the ECL rates, the Group
considers historical loss rates for each category
of loan portfolio, and adjusts for forward-looking
macroeconomic data.

TREEEWINREK KT

HKABMERRELIHN

The following table contains an analysis of the credit
risk exposure of loan portfolio for which impairment
allowance is recognised.

E—ME EZHER T B#

Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total

F-E-hE+=-RA=1-H THET TET TER TERT
As at 31 December 2019 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
K S E Gross carrying amount 6,917,554 8,167 3,912 6,929,633
RER & Impairment allowance (813) - (775) (1,588)
iqETEER Carrying amount 6,916,741 8,167 3,137 6,928,045
F—MER E-HR F=ME B

Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total

F=E-\E+=-A=+—H FAT FAT FAT FAT
As at 31 December 2018 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
L ETP=RE] Gross carrying amount 6,435,587 1,615 5,528 6,442,730
BELE Impairment allowance (47) (151) (468) (666)
QLR Carrying amount 6,435,540 1,464 5,060 6,442,064
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F_FE-hF+=-_A=+—H The impairment allowance for loan portfolio as at 31

R ITRAE G RE R &S EYR December 2019 reconciles to the opening impairment
BERFZXKAT - allowance as follows:
F-ME EHMR F=ZMER B#
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
TEx TExn TER TEx
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
F=5-\5—A—A Impairment allowance as at
RRERE 1 January 2018 5 = 383 388
MEEBFEHREITE  Net measurement of impairment arising
b from transfer of stage - 485 516 1,001
REFRREZZ M~ HEHZE) Movement due to changes in credit risk 42 - - 42
RS iGEhE Recoveries of loans not written-off - ®) (135) 143)
Y] 477 381 900
HBBEE=NE Transfer to stage 3 - (326) 32 -
A Write-offs - - (622) (622)
F-F-N\F+=-A=+—H Impairment allowance as at
MRER % (FE17) 31 December 2018 (Note 17) 47 151 468 666
BEMERTR Loans purchased 703 - - 703
MEREBFH=EHAEITE  Net measurement of impairment arising
BE from transfer of stage - 285 491 776
REFR R EZT = 44922) Movement due to changes in credit risk 63 - - 63
ERS Sl Recoveries of loans not written-off - @) (134) (156)
766 263 357 1,386
HBEE=ME Transfer to stage 3 - (@14) 414 -
Eais Write-offs - - (464) (464)
F=Z-h1E+=A=1+—H Impairment allowance as at
MR ERE (HE17) 31 December 2019 (Note 17) 813 - 775 1,588
AL S Charge of loan impairment allowance 766 263 357 1,386
Wl o 3k [ B SR A BT R Recoveries and release of
loans previously written-off - - (472) (472)
TREWANRERE/ Total charge/(write-back) of
(E13%) B3 (KHE12) impairment allowance
recognised in profit or loss
(Note 12) 766 263 (115) 914
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Cash and short-term funds

The impairment allowance for cash and short-term
funds as at 31 December 2019 reconciles to the
opening impairment allowance as follows:

TR
HK$’000

F—Z—-N\F—A—BHEEK%E Impairment allowance as at 1 January 2018 1,041
A THREmIANREL SZD) Change in the impairment allowance recognised
in profit or loss during the period (95)

F_F—"NEFE+-_A=1+—HH Impairment allowance as at 31 December 2018

BER & (HHE14) (Note 14) 946
BN FIRaIARREK ZES Change in the impairment allowance recognised

(fHE12) in profit or loss during the period (Note 12) 53
F-E-AF+=-A=+—HH Impairment allowance as at

BERKE (FE14) 31 December 2019 (Note 14) 999

RESHENRARS A&
H XA R T RPRITHIEE
R E S IRETUIFRAVRTT ©

REFEET — MR EER -
ZEEETEIR ST F I
ERE AR MAR R L S BT
SIRLFE  FREAEERN
Z5THEETIAR - ABER
ERENOTEETH

£ TFrA 7 RARITH SR RAN
BMERERRR - AEZES
BRI A AR X e F
HMEIAR R ER B R T 12
PATMEBERSR -

FZE-—NF+=A=+—H
F—_E-—NEFE+_A=+—
H @ AIEZHNHEEHETT
RAA2(FREER) - P2(R
M) FIF-2(FBZ) o
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According to the approved investment guidelines, the
Group can only place deposits with note-issuing banks
or banks with a certain minimum credit rating.

The Group has established a provision matrix
that is based on the external credit rating of each
counterparty and the corresponding historical
credit loss experience, adjusted for forward-looking
macroeconomic data to determine the ECLs for
impairment allowance.

All of these financial assets are considered to be low
risk in view of all deposit banks are rated at investment
grade by rating agencies, and thus the impairment
allowance recognised during the period was limited to
12-month ECLS.

As at 31 December 2019 and 31 December 2018, the

minimum acceptable short-term credit ratings are A-2
(Standard and Poor’s), P-2 (Moody's) and F-2 (Fitch).

Annual Report 2019
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Investment securities

According to the approved investment guidelines, the
Group can only invest in debt securities with a certain
minimum credit rating. The proportion of investments
according to rating categories is monitored and
reviewed by ALCO.

The table below presents an analysis of debt securities
by rating classification as at the end of the reporting
period, based on external credit agency’s ratings
(Standard and Poor’s, Moody's and Fitch). In the
absence of issue-specific ratings, the ratings for the
issuers are reported.

NALEZHITA

Hit2EkEN RRHERA

EFRRE Bk B9IE 3R R

Investment Investment
securities securities at BH
at FVOCI amortised cost Total
F-2-AFt=A=t-A FER FE7 T
As at 31 December 2019 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
AAA/Aaa AAA/Aaa - 527,608 527,608
AA-Z AA+/AG3 £ Aal AA- to AA+/Aa3 to Aal 2,797,417 2,375,913 5,173,330
A-ZA+/A3EAT A-10 A+/A310 A1 2,122,985 8,898,533 11,021,518
FiTR* Unrated* - 233,907 233,907
B Total 4,920,402 12,035,961 16,956,363

# T AE 4 1 T e K R B i 9 iE # The unrated investment security at amortised cost referred to

FRARETEI-_ZE—NE
FRAFIT RN E 75l 22 8
BB RHGRSIES © B
FEXRBASUEEFTBRFEERE
I THRRETITRATE
WAEHE T 2 _FF—A8
AR ERARFIUES M
HEZESH -

a debt securities where all of the credit ratings were withdrawn
by the credit rating agencies close to the year-end of 2019 for
commercial reasons. Since the debt securities was no longer
fulfilled the minimum credit rating requirements under the
investment guidelines, the Group had orderly disposed the debt
securities by January 2020 without incurrence of oss.
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Investment

securities at securities at

FvoCl amortised cost
T N\F+ZA=+—H THIT THAT THT
As at 31 December 2018 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
AAA/Aaa AAA/Aaa 30,105 711,904 742,009
AA-Z AA+/A3 E Aal AA- to AA+/Aa3 to Aa1 3,069,211 2,826,744 5,895,955
A-ZA+/A3ZE A1 A-10 A+/A3 10 A1 1,992,348 8,009,627 10,001,975
BA Total 5,091,664 11,548,275 16,639,939

TREA B FIARERK & /IE

HIRA S TTRBL DA

The following table contains an analysis of the credit
risk exposure of investment securities for which
impairment allowance is recognised.

E-ME E-MB BN BE
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
F-Z-NF+t=A=t-H TR TER TR TR
As at 31 December 2019 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
K S E Gross carrying amount
—UAFEZHITAEL  —FVOC
SHEME 4,920,402 = - 4,920,402
— RIEAHR ARt — amortised cost 12,035,961 - - 12,035,961
BER & Impairment allowance
— R A B AR B — amortised cost (1,455) - - (1,455)
tKEE Carrying amount
—AATEZHITAAM  —FVOC
SENE 4,920,402 = = 4,920,402
— RN MK — amortised cost 12,034,506 - = 12,034,506
16,954,908 - - 16,954,908
E—MER FME E=MB BA
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
F=2-\F+=R=1+-H THT T AT THT
As at 31 December 2018 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
KA B A Gross carrying amount
—UATEZITARM  —FVOCI
SEME 5,091,664 - - 5,091,664
— R AT Mk — amortised cost 11,548,275 - - 11,548,275
BEKE Impairment allowance
— IR RN DK — amortised cost (1,442) = - (1,442)
ETED Carrying amount
—URFEZMITAEL  —FVOC
+HEKE 5,091,664 = = 5,091,664
— BRIt — amortised cost 11,546,833 - - 11,546,833
16,638,497 - - 16,638,497
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F_FE-hF+=-_A=+—H The impairment allowance for investment securities
BVIE 51 R R E R % 5 B AR as at 31 December 2019 reconciles to the opening
BERFZXKAT - impairment allowance as follows:

F-HR EZHR E=HR BE
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total

TER TEL TER TER
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

F-ZF—\F—F—HK Impairment allowance as at

BEL & 1 January 2018
—UARFETMITALM —FVOCl
e 506 = = 506
— R SERCARSI K — amortised cost 1,245 - = 1,245
iR TREFIARR(E R % Change in the impairment allowance
R recognised in profit or loss
during the period
—URFEZMHITALM —FVOCI
SEME 14 - - 14
— IR i — amortised cost 197 - = 197
T2 )\£t+=A Impairment allowance as at

=t HRREKRS 31 December 2018
—UAFEZMITAEM  —FVOCI

SHEME 520 - - 520
— RS R A — amortised cost (Note 18(c))

(F3£18(c)) 1,442 - - 1,442
R THzmIARIER % Change in the impairment allowance

) recognised in profit or loss
during the period

—DURFEZHITAEM  —FVOC

SEKE (46) = = (46)
— TR ARSI MK — amortised cost 13 - - 13
F-E-nE+=A Impairment allowance as at

=t-HAMNAEKE 31 December 2019
— UATEZAITAEML —FVOCI

£ERS 474 - - 474
— IR ATk — Amortised cost (Note 18(c))
(Bf5E 18(c)) 1,455 - - 1,455
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(i) Investment securities at amortised cost

Investment securities at amortised cost
include listed and unlisted debt securities. The
impairment allowance on investment securities
at amortised cost as at 31 December 2019
reconciles to the opening impairment allowance
as follows:

TExT
HK$'000

F=2-N\F—A—R
BB &

A F RS HIAMRIE R &
%)

Impairment allowance as at 1 January 2018

1,245
Change in the impairment allowance
recognised in profit or l0ss
during the period 197

F=E-—N\F+—HA=+—H
RRE L % (M1E18(C))

BN F IRz IA BRI E L B
2z (FE12)

Impairment allowance as at

31 December 2018 (Note 18(c)) 1,442
Change in the impairment allowance

recognised in profit or loss

during the period (Note 12) 13

T-2-N&E+=-A=+—H
RRLE R & (X 18(c)

Impairment allowance as at

31 December 2019 (Note 18(c)) 1,455

AEFAERY —MKE
Bl ZEEETEAD
R 53 F 1) SRS AT
FREUHSEERS
ML FRFATEME
BNGEFHEHRITIHE -
AT € B 1B 1K 25 B T ER

(EeE

PIT 78 2 8 6 B 7R 51 I Y
EAFRANETRE T
—E-NAF+=-H
=T -HEMRHAITX
EiEm AHBE—F
—NE+ZA=+—H
I FERINNBIER &
R T 1240 AR (=

=40
TS o

The Group has established a provision matrix
that is based on the external credit rating of each
counterparty and the corresponding historical
credit loss experience, adjusted for forward-
looking macroeconomic data to determine the
ECLs for impairment allowance.

All of these investment securities carried at
amortised cost are considered no significant
increase in credit risk as at 31 December 2019,
and thus the impairment allowance recognised
during the year ended 31 December 2019 was
limited to 12-months ECLS.
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Investment securities at FVOCI

Investment securities at FVOCI include listed
and unlisted debt securities. The impairment
allowance on investment securities at FVOCI as
at 31 December 2019 reconciles to the opening
impairment allowance as follows:

TR
HK$’'000

F_FE-NE—A—HBH Impairment allowance as at 1 January 2018

B & 506
HIN F R IR RER & Change in the impairment allowance
Az recognised in profit or loss
during the period 14

F_F—N\F+-_A=+—HTF Impairment allowance recognised
His 2 mUREEH IR E L & in OCl as at 31 December 2018 520
HIN FRamIAR R ER & Change in the impairment allowance
Rz (M95£12) recognised in profit or loss
during the period (Note 12) (46)

F-E—h&E+=-A=+—H Impairment allowance recognised
THt2EWBEHRIANEERE in OCI as at 31 December 2019 474

REFAERY —MKRE
B ZEEETEAD
R 53 F 1) B4 A T
REEHHSERERT
ML FREFEMEE
BNEFHEHRITIAE -
AT E BB 1R 5 B0 T HA

ERSH -

LETHBEUNAFEEZL
T A H i 2 T W &R B9 IE
H R 1 FRIT RALA T
NERER - B ZF
& B A YR
f - [ LG HA PR B DA B ORL
BREZFMNRT 120 AH
THMET S 157 -

The Group has established a provision matrix
that is based on the external credit rating of each
counterparty and the corresponding historical
credit loss experience, adjusted for forward-
looking macroeconomic data to determine the
ECLs for impairment allowance.

All of these financial assets are considered to
be low risk in view of all investment securities
at FVOCI are rated at investment grade by rating
agencies, and thus the impairment allowance
recognised during the period was limited to
12-month ECLs.
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Maximum exposures to credit risk before taking
into account of collateral held or other credit
enhancements are analysed as follows:

The maximum exposures to credit risk of the financial
assets of the Group are equal to their gross carrying
amounts. The maximum exposures to credit risk of
the off-balance sheet exposures of the Group before
taking into account of reinsurance arrangements are
as follows:
2019 2018
T
HK$'000

TR
HK$'000

XS IAR AR Total risk-in-force
— RIBRE L S — mortgage insurance business 27,884,364 23,736,830
— HaBRERE S — other guarantee and
insurance business 12,510,343 9,644,703
40,394,707 33,381,533
€ REHH (€) Impaired loans
2018
T
HK$'000
RERFREE BAR Gross impaired loan portfolio 775 468
BrRHF E’J‘ffy’w@@ Allowance for loan impairment
78 in respect of such advances
— E=MER — stage 3 (775) (468)
F=F-—hF+=ZA=+—H There was no collateral held for impaired loans of the
ER—ZFE-—N\F+_A=+H Group as at 31 December 2019 and 31 December 2018.
% o A& FBE T BB (E DT R
BHHHR o

210 The Hong Kong Mortgage Corporation Limited Annual Report 2019



ek

Y @4k

7N 55 P U 1] 1 9 1R AR B R 1R SR A R
=

Y El ol A SRR A AT IR TR R
& FSFIA TR R B o
Wl TS RORERRIFET [H
R~ WA T - MREEEFSE
WA RARRIL - BRIEEBEERE -
DELRARFHEEA o

A REE

REFAENTIZR R EESHTE
A FHESIRRASRERTNES
MR BRI X © T3 KB T R % -
HEMREEFmERTEEE A~
£ A ZEREN —RERE
M7 2 3 J T 47 b S 4 (a0 7
K FRE OCERRERMN) RBIKF
LEH ARG o ZNE ] P IE X T 47 XU B
TERENRBEABETRANEEITH
MRS T AN ERERM~4E X
ERUINMEMNEHRT AN SN
[ o RERTRRA A FEX R - BT
M EIFEXS R R ITE B AR DI
BHERR  BFERESERA
TR E BT » RERIR A5
=H - 3Rl BAEL FEX P RE X
M FEAXT AR PASNT BN RITHI BT
KB F=H) AR o

(f)  Repossessed properties

The Group obtained assets by taking possession of
collateral held as security.

Repossessed properties are sold as soon as
practicable, with the proceeds used to reduce the
outstanding indebtedness and are classified in the
statement of financial position within “Other assets”. If
excess funds arise after repayment of the outstanding
indebtedness, they are distributed to the beneficiaries
of the assets under the applicable laws.

3.3. Market risk

The Group takes on exposure to market risks, which is the
risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial
instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market
prices. Market risks arise from open positions in interest rate,
currency and equity products, all of which are exposed to
general and specific market movements and changes in the
level of volatility of market rates or prices such as interest
rates, credit spreads, foreign exchange rates and equity
prices. The Group’s exposures to market risk primarily arise
from the interest rate management of the entity’s financial
instruments of different repricing characteristics, or from the
net exposure of the foreign currency denominated financial
instruments. The Group hedges a major proportion of its
existing interest rate risk of the fixed-rate bond issuance
using fair value hedges in the form of interest rate swaps
by swapping into floating-rate funding to better match the
floating-rate assets. The Group also hedges the net exposure
of the foreign-currency denominated debts issued and
assets by the use of cross-currency swaps as fair value
hedges and economic hedges respectively.
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The management of market risk is principally undertaken
by the Treasury Department using risk limits approved
by the Board of Directors. Strategies on interest rate
risk management, financing, hedging, investments are
formulated by ALCO. Regular meetings are held to review
the latest conditions in the financial markets and the asset-
liability portfolio mix. The Treasury Department is responsible
for monitoring financial market movements and executing
transactions in the cash, derivatives, debt and investment
markets in accordance with the strategies laid down by
ALCO. The middle office monitors the compliance of risk
limits and performs stress tests to assess the potential size
of losses that could arise in extreme conditions. The results
of the stress tests are reviewed by ALCO.

A principal part of the interest rate risk management is to
monitor the sensitivity of projected net interest income
under different interest rate scenarios and to mitigate the
negative impact through hedging operations. A 20 basis
points parallel downward shift of the interest rate curve as at
31 December 2019 would increase the future net interest
income for the next twelve months by around HK$2 million
(2018: HK$1 million decrease) and decrease by around HK$2
million (2018: HK$1 million increase) for a similar upward
parallel shift.

As at 31 December 2019, if interest rates at that date had
experienced a 20 basis points parallel shift downwards,
profit for the year would have been higher by around HK$9
million (2018: HK$1 million lower) and the fair value reserve
would have been higher by around HK$10 million (2018:
HK$4 million) as at 31 December 2019. If interest rates had
experienced a 20 basis points parallel shift upwards, profit
for the year would have been lower by HK$8 million (2018:
HK$1 million higher) and the fair value reserve would have
been lower by around HK$10 million (2018: HK$4 million).

As at 31 December 2019, with all other variables held
constant, if the Hong Kong dollars had weakened by 100
price interest points against the US dollars, profit for the
year would have been around HK$14 million higher (2018:
HK$20 million). Conversely, if the Hong Kong dollars had
strengthened by 100 price interest points against the US
dollars, profit for the year would have been around HK$14
million lower (2018: HK$20 million).
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As at 31 December 2019, with all other variables held
constant, if the Hong Kong dollars had weakened by 100
price interest points against foreign currencies other than US
dollars, profit for the year would have been higher by less
than HK$0.1 million (2018: HK$1 million). Conversely, if the
Hong Kong dollars had strengthened by 100 price interest
points against foreign currencies other than US dollars, profit
for the year would have been lower by less than HK$0.1
million (2018: HK$1 million).

As at 31 December 2019, with all other variables held
constant, if the price of exchange-traded funds and real
estate investment trusts had decreased by 1%, profit for
the year would have been around HK$4 million lower (2018:
HK$5 million). Conversely, if the price of exchange-traded
funds and real estate investment trusts had increased by
1%, profit for the year would have been around HK$4 million
higher (2018: HK$5 million).

The increase or decrease represents management’s
assessment of a reasonably possible change in interest
rates, exchange rates and equity prices for a 12-month
period.

(@) Foreign currency exposure

The Group takes on exposure to effects of fluctuations
in the prevailing foreign currency exchange rate on
its financial position and cash flows. The Board sets
allowable currencies for investment purposes. The
ALCO sets limits on the currency exposure that may be
undertaken, which is monitored daily. At funding side,
the multi-currency feature of the MTN programme
enables the Group to issue notes in major currencies,
including US dollars, renminbi, Singapore dollars, British
pounds, Australian dollars, euro and Japanese yen. All
foreign currency-denominated debts are hedged into
Hong Kong dollars.
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categorised by currency.

F-Z-AF+=ZA=1—H Asat 31 December 2019

BT Y4
HKD usb
TEx TEx
HK$'000 HK$'000

Hpgh
Other foreign

currencies
THT
HK$'000

The tables below summarise the Group’s exposure to
foreign currency exchange rate risk. Included in the
tables are the assets and liabilities at carrying amounts,

BE
Total
TET
HK$'000

fe) H) % L& IS E R FER

=

* SEXHRETT

o B 2B 45154278 JT /9 R IT 57 *
FUEHFRIZETHART
RSz It 2 B R B

I °©

’P= Assets
NeREERS Cash and short-term funds 27,618,157 280,179 9,848 27,908,184
BRI B RO Interest and remittance receivables 309,931 118,975 89,785 518,691
TEERIA Derivative financial instruments 200,702 - - 200,702
AR %3 Loan portfolio, net 5,111,696 145,388 1,670,961 6,928,045
ERRR Investment securities:
— UATEEELITA — FVOCl
Hipemias 1,404,577 3,515,825 - 4,920,402
— UAFEZH I A RS — FVPL 369,511 9,292 - 378,803
— R RATIiK — amortised cost 1,989,350 10,045,156 - 12,034,506
INSCEEER Placements with the Exchange Fund 12,881,627 - - 12,881,627
MRFI - e R Prepayments, deposits and
Hib s other assets 263,063 72,974 1,001,312 1,337,349
BERIUR = Deferred tax assets 79,170 - - 79,170
BRI R~ Reinsurance assets 208,991 - - 208,991
EE R~ Fixed assets 109,864 - - 109,864
R SH Total assets 50,546,639 14,187,789 2,771,906 67,506,334
A Liabilities
NAHE Interest payable 281,561 19,740 71,573 372,874
ARG MAFF S R Accounts payable, accrued expenses
Hfth £ 53 and other liabilities 5,087,577 172,606 1,034 5,261,217
THESRBIA Derivative financial instruments 299,935 - - 299,935
L EAR IR R Current tax liabilities 123,115 - - 123,115
R fix Insurance liabilities 6,501,639 - - 6,501,639
B ARSI Debt securities issued 28,571,799 5,962,048* 5177,116** 39,710,963
AR Total liabilities 40,865,626 6,154,394 5,249,723 52,269,743
FOEM Net position 9,681,013 8,033,395 (2,477,817) 15,236,591
REnERINES W6+ Off-balance sheet net notional
position # (5,655,092) 2,962,691 2,332,734 (359,667)
# [RERERINER VED ] # "Off-balance sheet net notional position” represents the
EOFTELRTA(TER difference between the notional amounts of foreign currency
PORBR AR & H T 5 MR sh #9 X derivative financial instruments, which are principally used to

reduce the Group’s exposure to currency movements and their

fair values.

Fully hedged into Hong Kong dollars.

Amounts included debt securities issued in Australian dollars of
HK$1.5 billion and renminbi of HK$3.6 billion, fully hedged into

Hong Kong dollars.
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Hep s
Other foreign
currencies
FiHT
HK$'000

BT EIV
HKD usb
TR TET
HK$'000 HK$'000

Total
TET
HK$'000

F-Z—-\E+-A=+—8 Asat31December 2018
R Assets
NekE#re Cash and short-term funds 28,807,046 510,753 73,056 29,390,855
MUFIE RSCER Interest and remittance receivables 281,881 111,117 44,921 437,919
TEERIA Derivative financial instruments 140,193 4,348 16,506 161,047
FRREA AT Loan portfolio, net 6,442,064 = = 6,442,064
EHRR Investment securities:
— RATETLITA —Fvocl
HinemR& 1,253,359 3,838,305 - 5,091,664
— UATEZHITAR —FVPL 534,843 8,769 - 543,612
— AR A ik — amortised cost 2,808,433 8,738,400 - 11,546,833
INSCEETER Placements with the Exchange Fund 7,734,934 - - 7,734,934
MTHI -~ Ze R Prepayments, deposits and
H At 5= other assets 689,045 140,351 95 829,491
BRERIUA = Deferred tax assets 77,866 - - 77,866
BRI R Reinsurance assets 171,518 - - 171,518
ERE Fixed assets 53,766 - - 53,766
R BH Total assets 48,994,948 13,352,043 134,578 62,481,569
A Liabilities
NRHE Interest payable 217,962 10,744 28,762 257,468
RAIRTR » NAFF S & Accounts payable, accrued expenses
H it 5153 and other liabilities 4,918,523 143,156 - 5,061,679
fTESBIA Derivative financial instruments 78,739 2,791 182,856 264,386
L EATI IR R Current tax liabilities 104,077 - - 104,077
RBS S fix Insurance liabilities 4,607,373 - - 4,607,373
BA1IHSIES Debt securities issued 28,199,186 5,996,683* 3,097,008** 37,292,877
lid=tl Total liabilities 38,125,860 6,153,374 3,308,626 47,587,860
FO2E Net position 10,869,088 7,198,669 (3,174,048) 14,893,709
ARERERINGG LS Off-balance sheet net notional
position # (11,770,471) 8,532,367 2,982,048 (256,056)

[RF=RRRINEB LR

BINPITESRIA(ZER

VARMR AN SR ] T 5%

EHER

B ) BB LSS E N FER

ZH °

* SEHXHRETT

** B #1528 T #9857
FiEH RISZETH AR
RIS I & 5 h R B

JG °©

* %

“Off-balance sheet net notional position™ represents the
difference between the notional amounts of foreign currency
derivative financial instruments, which are principally used to
reduce the Group's exposure to currency movements and
their fair values.

Fully hedged into Hong Kong dollars.
Amounts included debt securities issued in Australian dollars of

HK$1.5 billion and renminbi of HK$1.5 billion, fully hedged into
Hong Kong dollars.
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Cash flow and fair value interest rate risk

Cash flow interest rate risk is the risk that the future
cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate
because of changes in market interest rates. Fair value
interest rate risk is the risk that the value of a financial
instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market
interest rates. The Group takes on exposure to the
effects of fluctuations in the prevailing levels of market
interest rates on both its fair value and cash flow risks.
Interest margins may increase as a result of such
changes but may reduce or create losses in the event
that unexpected movements arise. The ALCO sets
limits on the level of interest rate mismatch that may
be undertaken, which is monitored regularly.

The tables below summarise the Group’s exposure to
interest rate risks. Included in the tables are the assets
and liabilities at carrying amounts, categorised by the
earlier of contractual repricing or maturity dates. The
carrying amounts of derivative financial instruments,
which are principally used to reduce the Group's
exposure to interest rate movements, are included
under the heading “Non-interest bearing”.
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-AMBR Over Over Over RENE Non-
Upto Tmonthto  3months  1yearto Over interest ot |
1month  3months  to1year 5 years 5 years hearing Total
Thn TH7T ThR THT Tén THT T
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FZB-NET=A=t-F Asat31December 2019
R’ Assets
NeREHRS Cash and short-term funds 7,392,061 19,205,213 1,235,938 - - 74972 27,908,184
RAHIE KL Interest and remittance recelvables - - - - - 518,691 518,691
fTESETA Derivative financial instruments - - - - - 200,702 200,702
REES A Loan portfolio, net 6,390,510 491,030 3,769 1,116 31,620 - 6,928,045
IEFRA - Investment securities:
—WAFEZHITA —Rvocl
Eos ks - 2,785,328 1,126,045 705,725 303,304 - 4,920,402
—NATERHIARE  —FWPL - - - - - 378,803 378,803
— ISR A0 — amortised cost - 1,575,045 1,224,151 4,122,643 5,112,667 - 12,034,506
MERER Placements with the Exchange Fund - - - - - 12,881,627 12,881,627
B0 &ER Prepayments, deposits and
AR other assets 72,853 - - - - 1,264,496 1,337,349
BEHRAT Deferred tax assets - - - - - 79,170 79,170
BREA Reinsurance assets - - - - - 208,991 208,991
EEA~ Fived assets - - - - - 109,864 109,864
RESH Total assets 13,855,424 24,056,616 3,589,903 4,839,484 5447591  15717,316 67,506,334
ik Liabilities
RfiF & Interest payable - - - - - 372,874 372,874
R NAFS Accounts payable, accrued expenses
REfAGR and other liabilities 5,036,339 - - - - 24878 5261217
fTESBIA Derivative financial instruments - - - - - 299,935 299,935
LERAR Current tax liabilities - - - - - 123,115 123,115
BBARE Insurance liabilties - - = = - 6501639 6,501,639
BR{TfR&IH DeDt securities issued 3068218 12,156,149 12,028,149 7,589,274 4,869,173 - 39,710,963
RREH Total liabilities 8,104,557 12,156,149 12,028,149 7,589,274 4,869,173 7522441 52,269,743
HSGEEROSH* Total interest sensitivity gap* 5750867 11900467  (8,438,246)  (2,749,790) 578,418
FRGATE Interest rate derivatives (notional
(BEARNaLET) amounts of net position) (391,432)  (4,870,641) 4,228,957 302,553 370,896
* RITASTESBHITAXNE X717 & before the repricing effect of derivative financial instruments

RBIEFEE BRI on the debt securities issued.
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Vi MEE
1AM Over Over TENE Nor-
Upto  Tmonthto 3months Over Interest B8
i 3months 10 1year 5Yyears bearing Total
T Thr ThT T T T TR
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS00L HK$000 HKS 00 HK$000
F-E-\E+-F=1-H Asat31December 2018
N Assets
NeREHAE Cash and short-term funds 9,187,118 18,714,302 1,219,899 - - 209,53 29,390,855
RSFERR Interest and remittance receivables - - - - - 437,919 437919
fEeRIE Derivative financial instruments = = = = - 161,047 161,047
RAAREH Loan portfolio, net 6,400,321 228 7012 10934 1,509 - 6,442,064
R Investment securities:
—WAFEZHITA —Rvocl
2 Al 851,591 3239436 497458 503,179 - - 5,091,664
—WATERKIARE  —AWRL - - - - - 503612 543612
— IR — amortised cost = 1309923 1,335,738 4,317,726 4,583 446 - 11,546,833
WERER Placements with the Exchange Fund - - - - - 7734934 7734934
Bz &ER Prepayments, deposits and
A otfer assets 137483 - - - - 692,008 829,491
BRI Deferred tax assets - - - - - 71,866 71866
BREA ReinsLirance assets - - - - - 7518 7518
BT A~ Fired assets - - - - - %766 %76
B Total assets 16,576,513 23,285,909 3,120,107 4,831,839 4,584,995 10,082,206 62,481,569
ik Liabilities
RifTFIE Interest payahle - - - - - 257,468 257 468
AR - MRS Accounts payable, accruied expenses
REMAR and other ligbiities 4,902,866 - - - - 158813 5061679
fTESETIA Derivative financial instruments - - - - - 264,386 264,336
LERIA G Current tax liabiities - - - - - 104,077 104077
REAR Insurance liabilities - - - - - 4,607,373 4607373
BATREITS Debt securities isslied 5631318 11,495,125 8,082,087 8,468,836 3615511 - 31092877
AREH Total liabilities 10,534,184 11,495,125 8,082,087 8,468,836 3615511 5392117 47,587,860
8 SEFERO A Total interest sensitivity gap* 604239 11790784 (4961980 (3636997) 969,484
FZGATE Interest rate derivatives (notional
(BeeRnaLes) amounts of net position) (567,144) (6,033612) 3810990 1,293,541 1,240,169
* AT APTESRTANE X717 & before the repricing effect of derivative financial instruments
RASIEAFEE SR on the debt securities issued.
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3.4. Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk represents the risk of the Group not being
able to repay its payment obligations or to fund committed
purchases of loans. Liquidity risk is managed by monitoring
the actual inflows and outflows of funds on a daily basis and
projecting longer-term inflows and outflows of funds across a
full maturity spectrum. The Group has established diversified
funding sources to support the growth of its business and
the maintenance of a balanced portfolio of liabilities. Sources
of liquidity are regularly reviewed by ALCO.

@)

Undiscounted cash flows analysis

The tables below present cash flows payable by
the Group under non-derivative financial liabilities,
derivative financial liabilities that will be settled on a
net basis and derivative financial instruments that will
be settled on gross basis by remaining contractual
maturities as at the end of the reporting period. The
amounts disclosed in the tables are the projected
contractual undiscounted cash flows including future
interest payments on the basis of their earliest possible
contractual maturity. The Group’s derivatives include
interest rate swaps that will be settled on net basis;
Cross currency swaps and currency forwards that will
be settled on gross basis.
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() FHTEIARASRA/CRE) 0)

AR

Upto
1 month
Tin
HK$'000

F-E-AE+ZBE=1—H Asat31December2019

Non-derivative cash inflows/(outflows)

=ML
E=/MA
Over

1 month

to 3 months
TiEn
HK$'000

=ARARE
B-F
Over

3 months
to 1 year
TR
HK$'000

—ENE
2R
Over

1 year

t0 5 years
Fin
HK$'000

REQLE
Over

5 years
TiEn
HK$'000

ok ]
Total
TR
HK$'000

i Liabilities
RfHRIR - AT R Accounts payable,
Eftfif accrued expenses
and other liabilities
—HRAR — lease liabilities (4,433) (8,866) (31,638) (1,376) - (46,313)
BRITR%IH Debt securities issued 388,298 (4,614,056) (16,999,131) (14,392,096  (6,603,357) (42,220,342)
383,865  (4,622,922) (17,030,769) (14,393,472)  (6,603,357) (42,266,655)

—M AR

Upto

1 month
AL

HK$'000

F-F-N\E+=A=+—H Asat31December 2018

ffE Liabilities
B TR&IH Debt securities issued (2,179,266)

=/1R
QOver

1 month
to3months

HK$'000

(6,272,341)

=MRKRE
Ea
Over
3months
to1year
AL
HK$'000

(11,778,059)

—EHE
BhE
Over
1year
t05years
b
HK$'000

(14,558,938)

BENE
QOver
5years
TAT
HK$'000

(4,517,697)

B
Total

HK$'000

(39,306,301)
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iy PTEIEIESHRACRt) (i) Derivative cash inflows/(outflows)

-MABE  ZARBE —ENE
Z=MA 2-F ZIE
-MAA Over Over over RENE

Upto 1month 3 months 1year Over k.
1month  to 3 months to1year  to5years 5 years Total
TR TAn TAR TER AR TER
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

F-B-nF+=A=1—-H Asat31December 2019

BETIIEREEER Derivative financial
ITESRTIA: instrument settled;
— AR — on et basis (14,288) (4,715) 54,277 22,254 (19,429) 38,099
—BHEE — 0N gr0ss basis
it S8 Total outflow (1,017,671)  (1,083,086) (7,315,595  (7,111,644)  (1,302,501) (17,830,497)
MALH Total inflow 1,017,756 1,060,879 7,279,611 7,090,225 1,270,811 17,719,282

(14,203) (26,922) 18,293 835 (51,119) (73,116)

—EpE
J BRE
—MNAR Over Over RENE

Upto 3months 1year Over ol

1 month to 1year to 5 years 5years Total
AL T TAT TAL TAL AL
HK$'000 HKS'00 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

FZF-\ETZA=1—H Asat31December 2018

ETIRELER Derivative financial
fTESMIE: instrument settled:
—AEEE — on net hasis (6,129) 17,655 29 14,587 (29,246) (3,104)
— BEEE — 0 gross hasis
iojurgey-i Total outflow (785,440) (1,808,855) (6,528,345) (1,512,233) (1503110 (12,138483)
WAL Total inflow 782,570 1,801,737 6,074,167 1,571,487 1,328,637 12,058,598

(8999 10,537 45,351 73841 (203,719) (82,989)
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EH A D

TRIEZIRBPRES HEH]
BRIAHE - 2T ERA>~ K

M RBIERE A -

B

Repayable
on demand
Thx
HK$'000

Maturity analysis

The table below analyses the assets and liabilities into
relevant maturity groupings based on the remaining
period at the end of the reporting period to the
contractual maturity date.

ML
Z=1B
Over

1 month to
3 months
ThL
HK$'000

=AMANRE
E-F
Over

3 months
to 1 year
Thx
HK$'000

—FNE
ZhE
Oover

1 year to
5 years
THx
HK$'000

-MBR
Upto
1 month
Thx
HK$'000

BENE
Over

5 years
TEx
HK$'000

ZRA ot
Undated Total
Tén  TiExn
HK$'000  HKS$'000

F-2-h%+=A=+-H Asat31December2019
i Assets
NeREWAE (BH) Cash and short-term funds (gross) 74,244 7,392,939 19,206,000 1,236,000 - - - 27,909,183
TRAAR Loan portfolio 1,081 48,631 109,831 465,280 2,829,037 3,432,242 43,531 6,929,633
EARR Investment securities
— UATEELITA —Fvocl
HirsEka - - 455954 685001 3,476,143 303,304 - 4,920,402
— IATETAIT AR —FVPL - - - - - - 378803 378,803
— R AT (S4) — amortised cost (gross) = = 569,967 2,229,362 4,123,244 5,113,388 - 12,035,961
INCEEER Placements with the Exchange Fund - - - - - 12,881,627 - 12,881,627
BRERS Reinsurance assets - - - - - - 208991 208,991
75,325 7,441,570 20,341,752 4,615,643 10,428,424 21,730,561 631,325 65,264,600
fifk Liabilities
REAGR Insurance liabilities - 32,808 63,140 276,808 1,288,506 3,366,221 1,474,156 6,501,639
BRIREIES Deht securities issued - 526,886 4,393,081 16,463,199 13,458,624 4,869,173 - 39,710,963
- 559,694 4,456,221 16,740,007 14,747,130 8,235,394 1,474,156 46,212,602

F=2-\5tZA=t-H

As at 31 December 2018
Assets

gt
Repayable
on demand
T
HK$'000

—E
LS
Over

1 year to
5years
T
HKS'000

—MNAW
Upto

1 month
T
HKS'000

AENE
Over
5years

TR
Undated

T TR
HK$'000  HK$'000

3months
10 1year
FHT
HK$'000

1 month to
3months
FHT

HK$'000

NeREHRS (55) Cash and short-term funds (gross) 196590  9,200211 18,715,000 1,280,000 - - - 29,391,801
e e Loan portfolio 2,195 44,59 123539 460,888 2,109,440 3,694,490 7582 6442730
IEFRA Investment securities
— WATFEEHITA —FRvocl
Eth2Ehe = 27,780 191,143 1,627,876 3,244,865 = - 5091664
— WATETHITARE —FVPL - - - - - - 543,612 543,612
— RG]0 (240 — amortised cost (gross) - - 300000 1335810 5328313 4584152 - 11548275
INLELETER Placements with the Exchange Fund - - - - - 773493 - 773493
BREAS Reinsurance assets - - - - - - 171,518 171,518
198785 9272587 19,329,682 4704574 10,682,618 16,013,576 722,712 60,924,534
fifit Liabilities
RB AR Insurance liabilities = 20,357 40,386 176,995 84,770 2222021 1322844 4,607,373
BRITfRSIES Debt securities issued - 259218 6110063 11,307,930 13,667,187 3,615,511 - 37292877
- 2612543 6,150,449 11484925 14491957 5837532 1,322,844 41,900,250
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3.5.

Apart from the above, interest and remittance
receivables, prepayments and other assets, interest
payable, accounts payable, accrued expenses and
current tax liabilities are expected to be recovered or
settled within twelve months from the reporting date.
Other assets and liabilities included in the consolidated
statement of financial position are expected to be
recovered or settled in a period more than twelve
months after the reporting date.

In addition, the Exchange Fund has committed to
providing the Group with a HK$30 billion revolving
credit under the Revolving Credit Facility, which
enables the Group to maintain smooth operation under
exceptional circumstances, so that it can better fulfil its
mandate to promote banking and financial stability in
Hong Kong.

Insurance risk

Through its general insurance subsidiary, the Group provides
the mortgage insurance cover to participating lenders for
first credit losses of up to 40% of the property value of
a residential mortgage loan in Hong Kong with loan-to-
value ratio 90% or below at origination, or other thresholds
as specified from time to time. The Group also provides
financial guarantee cover to participating Als up to 50%-70%
of the banking facilities granted to SMEs and non-listed
enterprises in Hong Kong, and insurance cover in respect of
reverse mortgage loans originated by participating lenders
and secured on residential properties, life insurance policies
and, if applicable, other assets.

The risk under any one insurance contract is the possibility
that the insured event occurs and the uncertainty of the
amount of the resulting claim. By the very nature of an
insurance contract, this risk is random and therefore
unpredictable.

For a portfolio of insurance contracts where the theory of
probability is applied to pricing and provisioning, the principal
risk that the Group faces under its insurance contracts is
that the actual claims exceed the carrying amount of the
insurance liabilities. This could occur because the frequency
or severity of claims are greater than estimated. Insurance
events are random and the actual number and amount of
claims and benefits will vary from year to year from the
estimate established using statistical techniques.
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Experience shows that the larger the portfolio of similar
insurance contracts, the smaller the relative variability
about the expected outcome will be. In addition, a more
diversified portfolio is less likely to be affected across the
board by a change in any subset of the portfolio. The Group
has developed a business strategy to diversify the type
of insurance risks accepted and within each of the key
categories to achieve a sufficiently large population of risks
to reduce the variability of the expected outcome.

The frequency and severity of claims can be affected by
several factors. The most significant are a downturn of the
economy, a slump in the local property market and a low
mortality rate of borrowers. Economic downturn, which may
cause a rise in defaulted payment, affects the frequency of
claims and collateral value. A drop in property prices, where
the collateral value falls below the outstanding balance
of the mortgage loan, will increase the severity of claims.
Low mortality rate of reverse mortgage borrowers means
longer payout period and larger loan balance will be over
time. This will affect the frequency and severity of claims as
there is a risk of the property value insufficient to cover the
outstanding loan balance in the future.

The Group manages these risks by adopting a set of prudent
insurance underwriting eligibility criteria. To ensure sufficient
provision is set aside for meeting future claim payments,
the Group calculates technical reserves on prudent liability
valuation assumptions and the method prescribed in the
regulatory guidelines. The Group also takes out quota-share
reinsurance from its approved mortgage reinsurers in an
effort to limit its risk exposure under the mortgage insurance
business and reverse mortgage business. The Group
conducts comprehensive assessment including the financial
strength and credit ratings of the reinsurers in accordance
with the approved selection framework. The approved
mortgage reinsurers are subject to periodic reviews. For
financial guarantee cover provided to participating lenders
via its general insurance subsidiary, the Group relies on the
lenders’ prudent credit assessment on the borrowers to
mitigate default risk and any loss in the loan facility will be
shared proportionately between the Group and the lender on
a pari passu basis to minimise moral hazards. The mortality
assumptions of reverse mortgages are also reviewed on a
regular basis, to assess the risk of larger deviation between
the actual and expected operating results.
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Through its life insurance subsidiary, the Group offers annuity
product to personal customers. Insurance risk arises from
an inaccurate assessment of the risks entailed in writing and
pricing an insurance policy. The major insurance risk is the
longevity risk which arises from the possibility that actual
life expectancy of annuitants being longer than expected.
Insurance risk is managed by adopting a prudent set of
assumptions and conducting regular experience studies.
Asset-liability mismatch risk inherent to the annuity product
is due to asset volatility, uncertain annuity liabilities, cash
flow mismatch and currency mismatch between assets and
liabilities. To mitigate such risk, the Group actively monitor
the performance and steadfastly maintains control over
asset allocation.

The general insurance subsidiary and life insurance
subsidiary are subject to the supervision of the Insurance
Authority and are required to observe the relevant
compliance requirements stipulated by the Insurance
Authority.

As at 31 December 2019, if the combined ratio of general
insurance business had increased by 1%, profit for the year
would have been HK$3 million (2018: HK$3 million) lower.
If combined ratio had decreased by 1%, profit for the year
would have been HK$3 million (2018: HK$3 million) higher.

The following table shows the sensitivity of insurance
liabilities on the life insurance business to potential changes
in mortality and valuation interest rate.
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F=2-nf+=A=+-8
As at 31 December 2019

FlAmp:S
+ 10%
- 10%
(ENERES
+0.5%
-0.5%

Mortality

+ 10%

- 10%

Valuation interest rate
+0.5%

-0.5%

R B& AR
Amount
change from
insurance
liabilities

THET
HK$'000
#hn/s O>)
Increase/
(decrease)

(73,941)
83,111

(201,611)
217,740

RS T2 5

Bo D
Percentage
change from
insurance
liabilities

%

B/ )
Increase/
(decrease)

(1.5)
17

(4.0)
4.3

F—F— )\ +_-_A=+—H
As at 31 December 2018

FlAmp:S
+ 10%
- 10%
HER =
+0.5%
-0.5%

Mortality

+ 10%

-10%

Valuation interest rate
+0.5%

-0.5%

IRES B 52
AT
Amount
change from
insurance
liabilities
T
HK$'000
2/ CRb)
Increase/
(decrease)

(45,692)
51,432

(132,321)
143,042

RBEE AR
ERais 237
Percentage

change from
insurance
liabilities

%

2/ O )
Increase/
(decrease)
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3.6. EMBEFRABHAFEE 3.6. Fair values of financial assets and liabilities

(@ 2DFEMIT (@) Fair value estimation
TRINTEAFEREGBE The following table shows financial instruments
HAGEE)HIANESRT A - recognised at fair value, by valuation method.
F-E-AFt-A=t-R
As at 31 December 2019
-B g-R =R ot -7 £-F
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total Level2
THT AT TEn TR T
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
&= Assets
fTHSRIA Derivative financial instruments - 200,702 - 200,702 - 161,047 - 161,047
FHRA Investment securities
—UNAFEEHITA  —ROCI
Ef Al 4,920,402 - - 4920402 5091664 - - 5091664
YN IR —FVPL
TARE 378,803 = - 378,803 543,612 = = 543612
INCEEER Placements with the Exchange Fund - - 12,881,627 12,881,627 - - 7,734,934 7,734,934
5,299,205 200,702 12,881,627 18,381,534 5,635,276 161,047 7,734,934 13,531,257
il Liabilities
ITESBIA Derivative financial instruments - 299,935 - 299,935 - 264,386 - 264,33

EEANATET.  Debtsecuritiesissued designated
ITARBHE AT as atfair value through

B&iH profit or loss - 147,184 - 147,184 - 143981 - 143981
- M - - 108367 = 108,367
TAFEE  E-—E5F=FEN There was no transfer between Level 1 and Level 2 nor
SMITAZRIEBEE 71 transfers into or out of Level 3 during the year.

THEAREHE=]Z -
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Financial instruments in Level 1

The fair value of financial instruments traded in
active markets is based on quoted market prices
at the reporting date. A market is regarded as
active if quoted prices are readily and regularly
available from an exchange, dealer, broker,
industry group, pricing service, or regulatory
agency, and those prices represent actual and
regularly occurring market transactions on
an arm'’s length basis. If an asset or a liability
measured at fair value has a bid price and an
ask price, the price within the bid-ask spread
that is most representative of fair value in the
circumstances shall be used to measure fair
value. These instruments are included in Level 1.

Financial instruments in Level 2

The fair value of financial instruments that are not
traded in an active market is determined by using
valuation techniques. These valuation techniques
maximise the use of observable market data
where it is available and rely as little as possible
on entity specific estimates. If all significant
inputs required to fair value an instrument are
observable, the instrument is included in Level 2.

Level 2 derivatives comprise interest rate swaps,
currency swaps and currency forwards. These
derivatives are fair valued using forward interest
rates and forward exchange rates, if applicable,
from observable yield curves.
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F_FEHRFIESER
BRAERT I LT
W KitELQFE:
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(iii)

Level 2 debt securities are fair valued using
quoted market prices in less active markets, or if
not available, a discounted cash flow approach,
which discounts the contractual cash flows using
discount rates derived from observable market
prices of other quoted debt instruments of the
counterparties.

Financial instruments in Level 3

If one or more of the significant inputs is not
based on observable market data, the instrument
is included in Level 3. The placements with the
Exchange Fund are included in Level 3 with fair
value determined by reference to the estimated
rates of investment return for future years,
approximate the carrying value.

Movement in Level 3 fair value measurement as
follows:

F—H—H As at 1 January 7,734,934 -
INCESTFR Placements with the
Exchange Fund 4,682,000 7,550,000
Tz IIAR Income from placements with
INCERIF RS the Exchange Fund recognised
(HHE9) in profit or loss (Note 9) 464,693 184,934
F+=—A=+—H As at 31 December 12,881,627 7,734,934
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(b)

HEAAREITERIERF ™
MR

T-F-h&+t=-A=t—H
E=—F-—NF+ZA=1+—
B RERAFRTMSRRE
BAVEERZINERTAN
KEESAFEHFEXEEAT
R BREKBEESAFERS
MEMITAIN  TRRFEAR
FEUTENESR I A ZKE

Fair values of financial assets and liabilities not
measured at fair value

The carrying amounts of the Group's financial
instruments not presented on the Group's statement of
financial position at their fair values are not materially
different from their fair values as at 31 December
2019 and 31 December 2018 except for the following
financial instruments, for which their carrying amounts
and fair values and the level of fair value hierarchy are
disclosed below:

B AFERATFERHE
Al

F-E-AE+=A=t-H F=3-\F+ZA=1+-H
As at 31 December 2019

KEfE IKEIfE

As at 31 December 2018

Carrying AVE %-B %=F Caning L2FE 2 E-E  #-F
amount Fairvalue  Level 1 Level 2 amount  Fair value Level1 Level2

THET THAT TER TR T THr THT oy
HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

SRA> Financial assets
R % Investment securities
— IRk ATtk — amortised cost

12,034,506 12,517,183 12,517,183 11,546,833 11,530,161 11,530,161 =

ERAK Financial liabilities

BRITRSIES Debt securities issued 39,563,779 40,046,257 - 40,046,257 3714889 36,588,954 - 36,588,054
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The following methods and significant assumptions
have been used to estimate the fair values of financial
instruments:

(i)

(if)

(iii)

Cash and short-term funds

Cash and short-term funds include bank deposits
and are stated net of impairment allowance.
The fair value of floating-rate deposits is the
carrying amount. The estimated fair value of
fixed-rate deposits, which are normally less than
6 months, is based on discounted cash flows
using prevailing money-market interest rates
for debts with similar credit risk and remaining
maturity. Therefore, the fair value of the deposits
is approximately equal to their carrying value.

Loan portfolio, net

Loan portfolio is stated net of impairment
allowance. An insignificant portion of loan
portfolio bears interest at fixed rate. Therefore,
the carrying value of loan portfolio is a
reasonable estimate of the fair value.

Investment securities at amortised cost

Investment securities are stated net of
impairment allowance. Fair value for investment
securities at amortised cost is based on market
prices or broker/dealer price quotations, which
are the clean prices. Where this information is
not available, fair value has been estimated using
quoted market prices for securities with similar
credit, maturity and yield characteristics.
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Other assets

These mainly represent receivables from
debt securities issued for settlement after the
reporting date with the fair value approximating
the carrying amount.

Debt securities issued

The aggregate fair values are calculated based on
quoted market prices, which are the clean prices.
For those notes where quoted market prices are
not available, a discounted cash flow model is
used based on a current yield curve appropriate
for the remaining term to maturity.

Other liabilities

These mainly represent the deferred consideration
used for credit enhancement on the mortgage
loans purchased from the Government in
December 2003 and January 2004 with the fair
value approximating the carrying amount.

Interest and remittance receivables and interest
payable

Accrued interest is recognised separately with
the fair value approximating the carrying amount
as it is expected to be recovered or settled
within twelve months from the reporting date.
Remittance receivables are expected to be
recovered within one month from the reporting
date with the fair value approximating the
carrying amount.



3.7.

HAEHE

AEAERAR (LB EBERT T
W 25 4800 DK E AR50 7) #0 B 40
W

«  BHABAMEE KB
AFR)ITERFERRIER
K IR 2 AT & R L U5 B
RHIE MR AAE

s WMRAKHFLEEMEEN
PABRER 1B R IR 1R

o  ARAEHMRERKE:

o  REMENRNAENITTEDE
RA - AT R NZ KB 1B
TEER - K&

. AREEHARERETELS
£ -

B[R ARYE W I B R AR )R AN FE
REiESI () - BRRERATE
REREERENAE - H5XES
FREBZE IR TE I A RUBS R AR B & AR 78
RAHEZR - s 5| FAE R A AT
KH 8% e

BERIEN R R K MM S &
EERNEZRERIRE - WRAEATTE
ETRRE14BIGFKE - BFHSBE
MPTES - MRATRERTH®E
R%HAT - EFREIRBA - H42
KEUE Y M NRUEE ° iR - AEH
HE ST K R ARSI E /B3I ETE
BRAHTE o

3.7. Capital management

The Group's objectives when managing capital, which is a
broader concept than the equity on the face of the statement
of financial position, are:

o To comply with the capital requirements set by the
Financial Secretary of the Government (Financial
Secretary) and the Insurance Authority for its
insurance subsidiaries,

o To safeguard the Group's ability to continue as a going
concern so that it can continue to provide returns for
shareholder;

° To support the Group'’s stability and growth,

o To allocate capital in an efficient and risk based
approach to optimise risk adjusted return to the
shareholder; and

° To maintain a strong capital base to support the
development of its business.

Capital adequacy and the use of regulatory capital are
monitored daily by the management in accordance with the
Guidelines on Capital Adequacy Ratio (Guidelines) issued by
the Financial Secretary, by reference largely to Basel Il risk-
based capital adequacy framework. The minimum Capital
Adequacy Ratio (CAR) stipulated in the Guidelines is 8%.

The Chief Executive Officer is required to submit a report
to the Board of Directors on a quarterly basis by reference
to the Guidelines issued by the Financial Secretary. If the
CAR drops to the threshold level of 14%, the Chief Executive
Officer will alert the Executive Directors. If the CAR falls to
12% or below, the Board of Directors will be informed and
appropriate remedial actions will be taken. During the period,
the Group complied with all of the capital requirement set
out in the Guidelines by the Financial Secretary.
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Pursuant to the Guidelines on the CAR, which is made
by reference to the Banking (Capital) Rules (BCR), the
calculation basis of capital ratio under the BCR follows
the basis of consolidation for financial reporting with the
exclusion of subsidiaries which are “regulated financial
entities” (e.g. insurance companies). It is because these
entities are supervised by a regulator and are subject to
the maintenance of adequate capital (e.g. solvency ratio) to
support business activities comparable to those prescribed
for banks under the BCR. The investment cost of these
unconsolidated regulated financial entities is deducted from
the capital base whilst the corresponding related exposures
are also excluded from the calculation of risk-weighted
assets.

The table below summarises the composition of capital base
and the CAR as at the end of the reporting period.

2019 2018

TET FHIT

HK$'000 HK$'000

i@ Share capital 7,000,000 7,000,000

% & Reserves 8,460,636 8,150,766

B L & Impairment allowance 4,344 3,290

IR : Deductions:

— FRUERBE AT — Investment in regulated

£y subsidiaries (8,000,000) (8,000,000)

— H A IBREN — Other deductions - (2,971)

RAREAL BN Total capital base 7,464,980 7,151,085

BT B E Capital Adequacy Ratio 30.2% 26.8%
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3.8. ERIBF~REMAMHRZITH 3.8. Offsetting financial assets and financial liabilities

TREED REREARLRE VSR The disclosures set out in the tables below pertain to
MERRIHRZBENHEHN SR A~ NEH financial assets and financial liabilities that are not offset in
R - BIZER MG GRE RG] 2E the Group's consolidated statement of financial position but
SETHIORER USRI ANES are subject to enforceable master netting arrangements or
N FTLIER » A B X S8, 320 similar agreements that cover similar financial instruments.
BT R RIBGUBIKAE R E TR &Y The disclosures enable the understanding of both the gross
BN et o and net amounts, as well as provide additional information

on how such credit risk is mitigated.

F=Z3-AF+ZA=+-A F=F-N\FtZA=+-H
As at 31 December 2019 As at 31 December 2018
BXEAREZEMSRAR PR EF: SIS RAR
REN% bigl:k e
RRER Related amount It Related amount
KEE not set off in not set off in
Carrying  the consolidated statement Carrying the consolidated statement
amounts of financial position* amounts of financial position*
onte ~— onte
consolidated fiESMIE consolidated ] i:|
statementof  Derivative ~ R&EAR A8 statement of Derivative
financial financial Cash Net financial financial Net
position  instruments collateral amount’ position instruments collateral amount’
TEx Thx TAR ThL TATL TATL AT TATL
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
SRR Financial assets
EBMITESR Positive fair values for
TEAYE derivative financial
instruments 200,702 (175,078) (22,765) 2,859 161,047 (98,859) (58,154) 4,034
SRAK Financial liabilities
BN ESR Negative fair values for
TANTE derivative financial
instruments 299,935 (175,078) (68,101) 56,756 264,386 (98,859) (137,483) 28,044

g [HEX1B HRELRE W 55 KR X 4 # Amounts under “Related amount not set off in the consolidated
eI | B ATMEETHRBA statement of financial position” represent the amounts of financial
WBEER I HI AL RN SRR liabilities/assets position that are subject to netting arrangements or
RS - similar agreements including CSA.

& BEER B E R HE S AR IR @ Net amount represents financial assets/liabilities that are subject
HAROSHE /O BIERSE to netting arrangements or similar agreements but the Group's
HARR SN FiEY » HIFSEHEEN counterparty does not have equivalent financial liabilities/assets
SRR A SASEAENH ° position with the Group to offset upon default.

EERBISARAT —=—N&EFHE 235



SREMEIREME Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

4. RBEDIHETTRRIR

AEFARBN T =M ERFEN R =R R
FPIKE A W < it R RIR - AEH 2
RESELREEMER (BFETAEXER
TXARFELUHELNAEIE) - FFEeiffh
P YEfA 1T R o o

41 ERESHBERE

REFARITETKAS - AEHIT
HMPERSR - EEERHERS
Ret - AEEX B MREIARERER
bo 2 B A EREAIEANVE L HIHT o 5L
RigRfAit - REFAFBHAFGRIE
S BRI RE R TN A8
RAERHEL AU - At RKIAS RS
A AT AR BIR S ERRT
POR/ME T SR R SRER S IRE R E

5 °

BRAET_FT—NF+=-A=1+—
B Ak EEEFT)E 17 N IEEE o

4.2 —RIREMNSHIREERIBRA
BHRRPRRE

ARERRITE R RBRES - ALF
EARRPREKE - BREBIAREHTE
HY B 2R B3k B R IB AR E B =1 EY
R EFEERBEREEIHR
BNRTAX - ERERRBRESF
B - REHERR RBRA Y TET
HEEPHBAEH A RRIE - 2
BETARTHANBKTER - &5
SRR AU T o HEKERHRR
W IERBRIR2AEE IR -

REAGTF=E—NLF+_A=+—
B &k B 2B E 25 NI EE -

Critical accounting estimates and assumptions

The Group makes estimates and assumptions that affect the
reported amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial
year. Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and
are based on historical experience and other factors, including
expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable
under the circumstances.

4.1.

4.2.

Impairment allowances on loan portfolio

The Group reviews its loan portfolio to assess ECLS on
a regular basis. In determining ECLS, the Group makes
judgements as to whether there is any significant increase
in credit risk since initial recognition. It is required to
exercise judgements in making assumptions and estimates
to incorporate relevant information about past events,
current conditions and forecast of economic conditions.
The methodology and assumptions used for estimating both
the amount and timing of future cash flows are reviewed
regularly to reduce any differences between loss estimates
and actual loss experience.

The carrying amount of loan portfolio as at 31 December
2019 is disclosed in Note 17.

Provision for outstanding claims on insurance and
guarantee portfolios of general insurance business

The Group reviews its insurance and guarantee portfolios
to assess provision for outstanding claims, including claims
of which the amounts have not been determined and
claims arising out of incidents that have not been notified
to the insurer, known as “Incurred But Not Reported” and
related expenses for settling such claims. In determining
the provision for outstanding claims, the Group makes
judgement and assumptions including but not limited to
the loss severity rate applied, the economic climate and
the local property market in making estimation of the
payments which the Group is required to make in fulfilling
its obligations under the insurance and guarantee contracts.
The methodology and assumptions used for estimating the
ultimate claim amount are reviewed regularly.

The carrying amount of insurance liabilities as at 31
December 2019 is disclosed in Note 25.
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4.3.

4.4,

4.5.

Insurance contract liabilities of life insurance
business

The liability for insurance contracts is based on current
assumptions with a margin for risk and adverse deviation.
The main assumptions used relate to mortality, longevity,
expenses and discount rates, which are reviewed regularly.

The carrying amount of insurance liabilities as at 31
December 2019 is disclosed in Note 25.

Determination of the lease term

In determining the lease term at the commencement date
for leases that include renewal options exercisable by the
Group, the Group evaluates the likelihood of exercising the
renewal options taking into account all relevant facts and
circumstances that create an economic incentive for the
Group to exercise the option, including favourable terms,
leasehold improvements undertaken and the importance
of that underlying asset to the Group’s operation. The lease
term is reassessed when there is a significant event or
significant change in circumstance that is within the Group'’s
control. Any increase or decrease in the lease term would
affect the amount of lease liabilities and right-of-use assets
recognised in future years.

Recognition of deferred tax asset for carried-
forward tax losses

The deferred tax assets mainly relates to tax losses of the
annuity business arising from maintaining prudent statutory
reserves based on actuarial assumptions. The Group has
concluded that the deferred assets will be recoverable using
the estimated future taxable income based on the business
plans. The annuity business is expected to generate taxable
income in the future. The losses can be carried forward
indefinitely and have no expiry date.
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5. RFAEHE 5. Segment information
AEFFTEEFTENEWER=RERE The Group is principally engaged in asset purchase and servicing,
BRS - —RIRK R AFRR LS - HAd general insurance and life insurance businesses in Hong Kong.
A 5s - BIER IR 4 R & LA A B2 5k i & 1T Other activities such as debt issuance to fund the loan purchase
RIS T A+ RF ST UK E I AT = A 5 and investment to reinvest the surplus funds from loan receipt are
BRARSHEITHIER A RABEEE= considered ancillary to asset purchase business.

SRS

—RRRESBEZRBRE ZERBR General insurance includes mainly mortgage insurance, reverse

FAOPRARRILES AGFREEESS mortgage and SME financing guarantee businesses. Life insurance

W o MERTZREXREERS BT includes annuity business. Asset purchase and servicing include

WAl 25 R {555 R AT H Ml 55 - loan acquisition business and other activities such as debt
issuance.

TRINTEAEHAZLE D WA & F K& The following tables represent revenue, profit and other

H A FHL information for operating segments of the Group.

WERER
HAERRS 2 AT
Asset —RER AFRE Inter-

purchase General Life segment Bif
and servicing insurance insurance  elimination Total
FHT FHT FHT FHT FHT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

HEZ-F-RLEt-B=1—-HILEE Yearended 31 December 2019

AFIEHA Net interest income 446,493 78,069 (571) - 523,991
BRELE L5 Net insurance business results - 215,189 (387,458) - (172,269)
HilA Other income 181,229 58,426 406,869 (181,127) 465,397
ZEWA Operating income 627,722 351,684 18,840 (181,127) 817,119
Z2EYH Operating expenses (325,179) (189,259) (146,340) 181,127 (479,651)
RREFNHZ ST Operating profit before impairment 302,543 162,425 (127,500) - 337,468
RE(%E)/ Bk (Charge)/write-back of impairment allowances (1,047) 111 2 - (934)
BRt D& Profit before taxation 301,496 162,536 (127,498) - 336,534
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Asset NFRR Inter-

purchase General Lif segment 81t
and servicing insurance insurance glimination Total
THL THL THL THL THL
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

BZE-F-\ET-A=T—HILEE Year ended 31 December 2018

AFIEHA Net interest income 438,904 95,264 2,041 - 536,209
AR S5 Net insurance business results - 243,509 (549,885) - (306,376)
HipA Other income 162,269 34 184,952 (97,622 249,633
ZEWA Operating income 601,173 338,807 (362,892) (97,622 479 466
ZEYH Operating expenses (240,840) (166,087) (103,083) 97,622 (412,383)
REREFNLERF Operating profit before impairment 360,333 172,720 (465,975) - 67,078
BERR/(RE) Write back/(charge) of impairment allowances 153 (280) %) = (134)
BREt D& Profit before taxation 360,486 172,440 (465,982) - 66,944
WERFR

HRERRS AEBEITI4H

Asset — kR AFRRE Inter-
purchase General Life segment it
and servicing insurance insurance  elimination Total
TR TR TR THr TR
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

F-Z-AE+=A=+-H As at 31 December 2019

DER = Segment assets 52,762,384 6,962,673 10,012,074 (2,230,797) 67,506,334
DE TR Segment liabilities 45,287,877 3,674,381 5,538,282 (2,230,797) 52,269,743

/ H

—fRiRR NERRE Inter-
purchase General Life segment 2it
and servicing insurance insurance elimination Total
THET THET THEL THT THT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

F-F-\£+=A=1-H As at 31 December 2018

HEE~ Segment assets 49,699,136 5,008,698 8,008,883 (235,143) 62,481,569
NE5 R Segment liabilities 42,550,765 1,863,272 3,408,971 (235,148) 47,587,860
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6. FIZ2UAN 6. Interestincome
2019 2018
FET TFETT
HK$'000 HK$'000
RS Loan portfolio 171,599 162,583
NeREHRE Cash and short-term funds 701,329 557,744
IEAR Investment securities 597,551 509,383
1,470,479 1,229,710
7. FEZH 7. Interest expense
2018
T T
HK$'000
RITIERKRE KITHRFIUES Bank loans and debt securities issued 836,054 607,367
HAEHNHR Lease liabilities 1,806 -
EAh Others 108,628 86,134
946,488 693,501
AREZRELZHBIEILMZET(ZFE—N Included within interest expenses are HK$944 million (2018:
& 692 TT) FIEUAFEEZ AT AR HK$691 million) for financial liabilities that are not at fair value
SRS o through profit or loss.
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8. {RBEEVLZHIU SR 8. Revenue account for insurance business

2019
— R AFRE & ;
General Life Bit General Bit
insurance insurance Total insurance insurance Total
TR TR TR THET THET BT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
ER5 Gross premiums written
(B R BE 25(0)()) (Note and Note 25(a)(i) 542,438 1,630,827 2,173,265 634,757 2,780,240 3,414,997
BREEZ (FE250))  Reinsurance premiums (Note 25(a)() (76,223) - (76,223) (69,018) - (69,018)
RE % 54 () 250)0) Net premiums written (Note 25(a)() 466,215 1,630,827 2,097,042 565,739 2,780,240 3,345,979
FBHRFNR AT Movement in unearned premiums, net (109,392) - (109,392) (188,327) - (188,327)
BRERE 2 (FHE 25@)0)  Net premiums earned (Note 25(@)(i) 356,823 1,630,827 1,987,650 377412 2,780,240 3,157,652
BERFE B BRFER  Netclaimsincurred,
REBEEAAGED benefits paid and movement
(P 25(@)(i) BBt 2500))  in policyholders' liabilities
(Note 25(a)(i) and Note 25(0)(i) (3,444) (2,018,114) (2,021,558) (3,3392) (3,317,645) (3,321,037)
KREERHRT AT Net premiums earned after provisions 353,379 (387,287) (33,908) 374,020 (537,405) (163,335)
ez Commission expenses (163,487) (52) (163,539) (154,121) (12,268) (166,389)
FaEZE Levy expenses = (119) (119) - 212) 212)
BREATZEHESSE  Reinsurers' share of
commission expenses 25,297 - 25,297 23,610 - 23610
BeTHARRIES L Net commission and levy expenses (138,190) (171) (138,361) (130,511) (12,480) (142.991)
IhAEE ISR Net premiums earned after
B HEIR S 240 commission and levy expenses 215,189 (387,458) (172,269) 243 509 (549,885) (306,376)
B - Note:
B—BRRRULSHE EREEZZREKBREE For general insurance business, gross premiums were mainly derived from mortgage
RIBOTRIRIG AW 55 » insurance cover on mortgage loans and on reverse mortgage loans.
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H A

kBEINCES TR K E

9. Other income

2019

Tz
HK$'000

Income from placements with

2018
TR
HK$'000

the Exchange Fund 464,693 184,934
IRE R A RIS BT Early prepayment fees and late charges 396 384
LA ZEE Exchange difference (37,592) 12,335
ol = /NS T [~ R Net change in fair value of
financial instruments (11,936) 11,840
AR EZ I AT B Net gain/(losses) on investments at
B (SH) 53 fair value through profit or loss 33,037 (13,500)
HE AN BT T A FH A Net gain on disposal of investments
N Eat O E AN Ea gk at FvOCl 75 =
oS R P B PR AN B R A9 38 R Net gain on disposal of investments
g2l at amortised cost - 192
EmRREEWA Dividend income from listed investments 20,019 58,626
EAh Others (3,295) (5,178)
465,397 249,633

CRTEAAFEZFHELETATEINE
M:NEBENAFENAONFTAEAF
BESH1,500 0B T(=ZF—\F 32412
7B 70) R INE A FE U 1,400 7S TT
—E— )\ :325ZETT) : RITFAE
KEXNASIT A ENTETEAFESH
1,400 8T (=ZF—/\F : 70055 thzs)
RIEBEANRNFER AT ARSHE X1T
RSN FEKRZE00FHET(ZE—N\
& 400 5BTT) °

Change in fair value of financial instruments represented
the aggregate of (i) HK$15 million fair value loss on hedging
instruments designated as fair value hedge (2018: HK$324 million)
and HK$14 million fair value gain on the hedged items (2018:
HK$325 million); and (i) HK$14 million fair value loss on derivatives
not qualified as hedges for accounting purposes (2018: HK$7
million gain) and HK$3 million fair value gain on debt securities
issued designated as at fair value through profit or loss (2018:
HK$4 million).
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10. Operating expenses

2019 2018
F#&xT FETT
HK$'000 HK$'000
BRAMKA Staff costs:
— Fe k@ — Salaries and benefits 272,804 237,081
— RIRE A — Pension costs
— REHRITX — defined contribution plans 15,619 13,576
DARE : Premises:
— e (%) — Rental (Note) - 49,845
— HAh — Others 10,284 9,123
E==iokn Directors’ fees = =
MEES5NA Emoluments in respect of directors’
EEESHEMARS other services in connection with
M F2<E : the management of the affairs
of the Company:
— &5 EWEREL — Salaries, allowances and bonus 6,761 6,367
— NIRRT RIFTVE Z 3K — Retirement scheme contributions 654 633
#r 18 (B E22) Depreciation (Note 22)
— FERAMRE (MHE) — right-of-use assets (Note) 53,877 =
— H b [EE R = — other fixed assets 27,160 19,371
W2 A ARSS Financial information services 10,962 8,259
o) & Consultancy fees 19,237 17,248
M Ry EX Marketing and advertising expenses 32,954 21,294
EmARELH Other operating expenses 29,339 29,591
479,651 412,388

B -

AEFERPEBMSIREENFE 165 - FAER
BEAITENF17SEOXNEEMROMES -
BEBAT -ZE-NAF—A—BHNERRE™ 28

LR » (HE2.1@) °

Note:

The Group has adopted HKFRS 16 and adjusted the opening balances as at 1 January
2019 to recognise right-of-use assets relating to leases which were previously
classified as operating leases under HKAS 17 (Note 2.1(a)).
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1. ZEUnENE 11. Auditor’s remuneration

2019 2018
THBxT FHIT
HK$'000 HK$'000

ZHININE Auditor's remuneration:
— mHRS — Audit services 3,552 3215
— HARS — Other services 1,710 1,349
5,262 4,564

12. B{EH#KE 12. Charge of impairment allowances
2018
T
HK$'000
RROREL %/ (B%) : Charge/(write-back) of loan impairment
allowances:

— Y& REHAES (F5E3.20)) — Cash and short-term funds (Note 3.2(b)) 53 (95)

— UFHE R — Investment securities

— LA AN B — amortised cost (Note 3.2(c)(i)
(B33 3.2(0)(0)) 13 197
— AR FEZAIT A — FVOCI (Note 3.2(c)(ii))

2 HEs (B 3.2(0)() (46) 14
— RS (MHE3.2() — Loan portfolio (Note 3.2(a)) 914 18

934 134
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13. BiIn 13. Taxation

(a) HZREWETRAMIBINA : (a) Taxation in the consolidated income statement
represents:
2019 2018
FHBxT TFHTT
HK$'000 HK$'000
BBERER Hong Kong profits tax
— HEIRII — Current tax 17,811 17,987
— I EFEIRE — Adjustment in respect of
prior years 2,566 (30)
20,377 17,957
12 FE 5 T Deferred taxation
— AFEIRE — Credit for current period (1,304) (77,571)
19,073 (59,614)

Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate of 16.5%
(2018: 16.5%) on the estimated assessable profit for the
period. Deferred taxation is calculated in full on temporary
differences under the liability method using a principal
taxation rate of 16.5% (2018: 16.5%).

T AN HA 8] £ A O {1 R IR AR O R IR
16.5% (= F — )\ : 16.5%) K i &
HREBFBRIKL S - BTEFHIUAR
BRI 165%(=F — /\4F : 16.5%)
WEBHRITE 2 PR ZH -

The taxation on the Group's profit before taxation differs
from the theoretical amount that would arise using the
taxation rate of Hong Kong as follows:

AEHWRRINEN RS RAE
BREUTHENBLSINERAT ¢

PAONES
FAETT
HK$'000
FR 54 5104 A Profit before taxation 336,534 66,944
#16.5% (ZF—/\F : 16.5%) Calculated at a taxation rate of
BB EItE 16.5% (2018: 16.5%) 55,528 11,046
RS - Tax effect of:
— BT R U — income not subject to taxation (181,027) (157,438)
— DA A T2 — expenses not deductible for
taxation purposes 114,813 86,808
— RFIAF S SN — tax losses not recognised 8,169 -
— UAFERE — adjustment in respect of
prior years 2,566 (30)
— HAh — other 19,024 -
RIS H,(GRE) Taxation charge/(credit) 19,073 (59,614)
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(b) MBFRARAMBINEEA : (b) Provision for taxation in the statement of financial
position represents:

2018

TFETT

HK$'000

18 FE R T8 72 Deferred tax assets 79,170 77,866

= BRI £ R Current tax liabilities 123,115 104,077
—NWE+-_A=+—HBHE=-= There was no significant unprovided deferred taxation as at

—N\FE+—A=+—H HEMEF=E 31 December 2019 and 31 December 2018.

AR ZIL LRI °

158 AERR I (& =) /ﬁi TR Z A RED The major components of deferred tax (assets)/liabilities and
P RENEZHET the movements during the year are as follows:

RSB IR RERE
Accelerated  Impairment

tax  allowances BETH J=t]

depreciation and provisions Tax losses Total

THT THT THT THT

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

—“F-\$-A-H As at 1 January 2018 3,366 (3,661) - (295)
TaRmMkR/ (FA) Charged/(credited) to

income Statement 603 (964) (77,210) (77,571)

—E-N\FTZA=1T—H Asat31December2018 3,969 (4,625) (77,210) (77,866)

T RRMEG/ (EAN) Charged/(credited) to

income statement 4,240 (107) (5,437) (1,304)

F=Z-hAF+=B=+—H Asat31December 2019 8,209 (4,732) (82,647) (79,170)

B IERR IR 7= R R T B BB ARKR IR Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that

s EEIAER T A2 sufficient future taxable profits will be available for

RIS 0] TR AL # - realisation. The unused tax losses can be carried forward

indefinitely.

FH=NAN - BERERELERHI There is no significant amount of deferred tax assets/

R/ RRELEH - liabilities to be settled within twelve months.
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14. BEREYAER

14. Cash and short-term funds

2019 2018

THET FET

HK$'000 HK$'000

RTINS Cash at banks 74,244 196,590
RITEBTFR Time deposits with banks 27,834,939 29,195,211
e REHRE S Gross cash and short-term funds 27,909,183 29,391,801

N REHRERBER S Impairment allowance on cash and

(FFE3.2(b)) short-term funds (Note 3.2 (b)) (999) (946)
27,908,184 29,390,855

pARERME A hFRIASWMA
BRERATERZBHEIT="AREHY

For the purposes of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash
equivalents comprise the following balances with less than three
months" maturity from the date of transaction.

SR o
2019 2018
THET FHETT
HK$'000 HK$'000
RITI & Cash at banks 74,244 196,590
RITTEETFER Time deposits with banks 11,882,939 14,581,211
& kERIEINE Cash and cash equivalents 11,957,183 14,777,801

15. RIWFI 2 R CFR

15. Interest and remittance receivables

PATN S T E 2 WA 8

Interest receivable from:

— F R HE Y — interest rate swap contracts 254,305 161,582
—IEAER — investment securities 140,873 135,392
— RITEHFER — time deposits with banks 90,816 99,291

TIRAA A KRR B K Interest receivable and instalments,
BRI ER in transit from loan portfolio 32,697 41,654
518,691 437,919
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16. FTEERMTE

(a)

PTETEMNA

AEFANATINTET A HAER
W BN -

BEMIZES L9 NEARRK B HIATUEIE
TE B LRGSR H E SN Y ATE © B8
R A= BN A — B &R E R
AP S RER A o S
MR FELAGNER - BrET
BN ZFERF TR
£ o AEFMEINR IR ZHF R
EERTEREMBEERRHANNE

A - REFARBEFENESZ SN
FREEENH  FLENEXR

B o

ETHREMTANBLET - AT
SREVSHRRBIAN TERE D
LBRH R - HER RS B R RSk
DenENSAXT AL AF
B Bt - e RS FH 6
EREMNTEREG - BEE 127 = KoL
TR R R FRAN S - FTET A AR
WAEE = EA R (R =) A (7
MM - STESRTANS LK
BULIAMBE - ERF AR
BE  ROTETASRAS Rz
N RE - ATRETEY RIBIK S ° FT#s
BRITETAERFHER T T e

16. Derivative financial instruments

(a)

Use of derivatives

The Group uses the following derivative instruments to
hedge the Group's financial risks.

Currency forwards are commitment to purchase or sell
foreign currency at a pre-specified exchange rate on a future
date. Currency and interest rate swaps are commitments to
exchange one set of cash flows for another. Swaps result in
an exchange of currencies or interest rates or a combination
of all these. No exchange of principal takes place except
for certain currency swaps. The Group's credit risk
represents the potential cost to replace the swap contracts
if counterparties fail to perform their obligations. This risk
is monitored on an ongoing basis under a prudent treasury
counterparty risk management framework.

The notional amounts of certain types of financial instruments
provide a basis for comparison with instruments recognised
on the consolidated statement of financial position but do
not necessarily indicate the amounts of future cash flows
involved or the current fair value of the instruments and,
therefore, do not indicate the Group's exposure to credit or
price risks. The derivative instruments become favourable
(assets) or unfavourable (liabilities) as a result of fluctuations
in market interest rates or foreign exchange rates relative to
their terms. The aggregate contractual or notional amounts
of derivative financial instruments on hand, the extent to
which instruments are favourable or unfavourable, and thus
the aggregate fair values of derivative financial assets and
liabilities, can fluctuate significantly from time to time. The
fair values of derivative instruments held are set out below.
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a4/
ZUEH ATE 4 AF(E
Contract/ Fair values Contract/ Fair values

notional "= il notional R fifk
amounts Assets Liabilities amounts Assets Liabilities

TR FET FHT THT T THL
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

() THAFEWHAIAE () Derivatives not qualified as hedges

MFTETA for accounting purposes

Fl&ie Interest rate swaps 2,977,834 5,008 4112) 302329 11,001 )

Kises Currency swaps 1,842,627 15,801 (20,141) - - -
KA Currency forwards 19,554 167 - 3,315,395 700 (565)

20976 (24,253) 1,741 (642)

(i) AFERRHTETR (i) Fair value hedge derivatives

| 5 Interest rate swaps 18,040,000 133,215 (53,980) 14,246,974 129,153 (78,663)

Hhigd Currency swaps 14,173,651 46511 (221,702) 8455076 20,153 (185,081)

179726 (275,682) 149,306 (263,744)

EWNTATARE/ Total recognised derivative
(fif5x) B assets/(liabilities) 200,702 (299,935) 161,047 (264,336)
(b) X&) (b) Hedging activities
WHTHE TEEA RN FEXN ISR Derivatives may qualify as hedges for accounting purposes if
XA eIt EmE  STETEA they are fair value hedges or cash flow hedges. The Group's
KRS RF & KRR A& - AEFR A FE fair value hedge principally consists of interest rate and
A EZERIEATRERR Z1THRS currency swaps that are used to protect interest rate risk
IEA A EMNEREEESETSI Z and foreign currency risk resulting from any potential change
M2 XU B RSN XURS B ) 22 K0 3 4 in fair value of underlying debt securities issued. There were
He F-F—NE+-A=+—HEK no derivatives designated as cash flow hedges as at 31
“E-N\F+ZA=1+—8 " HEfE December 2019 and 31 December 2018.

AHEERASRIAPITETA o
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17. GERRAEHE 17. Loan portfolio, net
(a) ERASEKE (a) Loan portfolio less allowance
2019 2018
FHET T
HK$'000 HK$'000
Esﬂﬂ%‘ﬁ}‘x H= Residential mortgage portfolio 4,910,217 6,179,353
IR BT A Non-mortgage portfolio
BT Infrastructure loans 1,817,052 -
B 73 A0 49 B Wbk SR K Eo At Finance lease receivables
and others 202,364 263,377
6,929,633 6,442,730
DIOB B % ()% 3.2()) Allowance for loan impairment
(Note 3.2(a)) (1,588) (666)
6,928,045 6,442,064
DUORE & B8 S TS MR Total allowance for loan impairment as a percentage of the
BARSERNBD LT outstanding principal balances of the loan portfolio is as
follows:
2019 2018
‘f?ﬂ%ﬁ?&'ﬂﬂ i E‘f?k Total allowance for loan
BE BEHME D impairment as a percentage
of the gross loan portfolio 0.023% 0.010%
EL RO ER BN - EESERKAR Allowance for loan impairment has been made after taking
# B RITAE - into account the current market value of the collateral.
2019 2018
BERZTAE BH 5 IR Gross impaired loan portfolio
ZE/:'\E\%JH\EI'JE as a percentage of gross
loan portfolio 0.011% 0.007%
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(b) ERASHAMMARETIRS (b)

FER

Net investments in finance leases included in loan
portfolio

2019

RREAE M
FIE WA
Interest
income

RIEN WAL
A E
Present value
of minimum
lease
payments
receivable
TER
HK$'000

RIEA YT
RTEE
Total
minimum
lease
payments
receivable
TET
HK$'000

relating to
future
periods
THET
HK$'000

BRI Amounts receivable:
——FnK — Within one year 21,004 3,829 24,833
—— FRERFN — after one year but within
five years 67,048 11,504 78,552
e = — after five years 104,977 11,238 116,215
193,029 26,571 219,600

2018

ARKER R RIENUFEL
ARSI ON I A
Interest Total
income minimum
relating to lease
future payments
periods receivable
THET FHBT
HK$'000 HK$'000

AR R I AE 49
RIIE
Present value
of minimum

lease
payments
receivable
FHT
HK$'000

RIYFRI Amounts receivable:
——FR — within one year 25,533 5,341 30,874
——FEERFH — after one year but within
five years 85,546 16,329 101,875
—hFE — after five years 142,565 17,318 159,883
253,644 38,988 292,632

& FR A sh AR 1H 49 R RGR VB
TIRRER &

No allowance for loan impairment has been provided for
finance lease receivable.
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18. IEHIRH

(a) DAFEZEAITARBLE
AYIESHIR T

BN AT IR A 155 IE S

18. Investment securities

(a) Investment securities at FVOCI

2019 2018
FTET

HK$'000

TR
HK$"000

Debt securities at fair value

FTHRELET Listed in Hong Kong 1,101,818 587,702

TEBEIINET Listed outside Hong Kong 2,011,352 2,128,745

[ Unlisted 1,807,232 2,375,217
IAAFEZAITAEMEE Total FVOCI securities

W 25 HYIE 25 5 57 4,920,402 5,091,664

AR FHEZEM T AR {2 E U BV IE
HFEBRHSILSE  ETaNISRE
RAXERME - MAREFH X
RS2 2 Ml SRR B A7 E e
BRAHNeRERHESRA MK
o

BARATNAZERI D ITA N FEZC1T

FVOCI securities comprise debt securities where the
contractual cash flows are solely principal and interest and
the objective of the Group’s business model is achieved both
by collecting contractual cash flows and selling financial
assets.

FVOCI securities are analysed by categories of issuers as

AEMembSAIESEDT ¢ follows:
2019 2018
F#&x F&TT
HK$'000 HK$'000
RITREM S B Banks and other financial institutions 3,941,969 4,266,072
NIk Corporate entities 822,285 795,487
NENH Public sector entities - 30,105
R RBUT Central governments 156,148 -
4,920,402 5,091,664
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AR FEZ T A H A2 E G IE The movement in FVOCI securities is summarised as follows:
FRANBROT ¢

+—H—H As at 1 January 5,091,664 5,480,912
30 Additions 1,679,612 1,307,246
& K B E Sale and redemption (1,846,295) (1,693,196)
WEH Amortisation (645) (2,534)
NFEEZ D) Change in fair value 13,610 (7,182)
SN R ZE R Exchange difference (17,544) 6,418
F+=—A=+—H As at 31 December 4,920,402 5,091,664

BXRRE  ERRERAERHEFEEN Information on the impairment, credit quality and the

B8 B9 73R T FE)E 3.2(C) #BR © Group'’s exposure to credit risk are disclosed in Note 3.2(c).

(b) LDIAFETMHITANREZMIES (b) Investment securities at FVPL
82

2019 2018

FET FHET
HK$°000 HK$'000

BATESKNAZ STESE  Exchange-traded funds and real estate
He MEFIRRELES  investment trusts at fair value

FHE L™ Listed in Hong Kong 378,803 543,612
LAAFEZEAIT AIRZEMUES  Total FVPL securities
BE 378,803 543,612
REF BT HFEIRMEHEK A=A The Group classifies other investment securities in exchange-
ANFET LT A E b2 E SRR AN traded funds and real estate investments trusts at FVPL,
REGTEZHEE NEH =R R EEE which do not quality for measurement at either amortised
SEHEMIEFRT DR NARNTER cost or FVOCI.

it Atz
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The movement in FVPL securities is summarised as follows:

AR B T A R MIE 0025

BRI -
2018
FHIT
HK$'000
FT—H—H As at 1 January 543,612 1,657,750
&N Additions - 16,644
HeE Sale (193,052) (1,096,226)
NFEZ ) Change in fair value 28,288 (35,278)
SN R ZEER Exchange difference (45) 722
FT+=—H=+—H As at 31 December 378,803 543,612

(c) $RMESHAATINRAYIES 13 (c)

Investment securities at amortised cost

2018

TET
HK$'000

IR ARG IR BB SSIES  Debt securities at amortised cost

TESBEM Listed in Hong Kong 7,270,898 6,317,348

TEBRIN LT Listed outside Hong Kong 2,193,184 2,106,090

9,464,082 8,423,438

LT Unlisted 2,571,879 3,124,837
2 P B AR AN 1 K A9 UE S5 Gross investment securities at

R BAR amortised cost 12,035,961 11,548,275

TR AS A AR I K EYIIE A A HY  Impairment allowance on investment

RE L & (BTE 3.2(c)()) securities at amortised cost

(Note 3.2(c)(i)) (1,455) (1,442)

AR ARSIk BIE S S8 Total amortised costs securities 12,034,506 11,546,833

REFNT BT EIATREZER
B D2 BIESR R D R AIRMEK
B -

o UEBRAMBIRAFERSMN
WA NN EHE &

o  REFEAHFKERTERAHNI
EREDI2HATNAEM
REEARSEHIFE

The Group classifies investment securities as at amortised
cost only if both of the following criteria are met:

o the asset is held within a business model with the
objective of collecting the contractual cash flows, and

o the contractual terms give rise on specified dates to
cash flows that are solely payments of principal and
interest on the principal outstanding.
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2 ZATHAIZE B 53 AT 4= o £ A AR B Amortised cost securities are analysed by categories of
HIEHIAT ¢ issuers as follows:

R1T R E M B Banks and other financial institutions 4,064,177 5,075,984
NCIEN2 Corporate entities 6,270,963 4,904,367
NEHM Public sector entities 358,587 540,768
FR R BT Central governments 1,342,234 1,027,156
12,035,961 11,548,275
TR B4 Ak AR 71 i B9 1E 25 79 35 S 10 The movement in amortised cost securities is summarised
™ as follows:
2019 2018
TER FETT
HK$'000 HK$'000
F—H—H As at 1 January 11,548,275 10,347,834
0 Additions 2,176,283 1,855,361
& & s E] Sales and redemption (1,631,368) (653,843)
P Amortisation (5,492) (11,147)
AT SE 5, Z 5T Exchange difference (51,737) 10,064
FT+=—B=+—H As at 31 December 12,035,961 11,548,275
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19. SNCEERHER

REFE B FE SN E] RIZIERE 2 7 AIFH
LESERDENARNFETIT AR
MeEMmArE - F=FE—NE+=-_A=+—
B WNCEESHFERERAI9ZEBTL(ZF
—\F 778 T)  BREASBHN122
B T(ZE—NF 76ZBT)METFE
1k B EBELRE 21HE H AR RE A -

SNCESFFRRA TINCESWIRAAS
REKHBRAES  AXUERTHARS -
SNCEESFHREREIZFEE - sIRA A
BME  EREDRERFAAGTENF
BV E R R FFE=FHERA GRS
FEHWERE(TRI0%) ITE - LREE R
e MKHERKAATE @ @HRXTIRE
ANEER I E RER EE -

19. Placements with the Exchange Fund

The Group has classified the placements of the HKMCA and the
HKMCI with the Exchange Fund as financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss. As at 31 December 2019, the balance of the
placements with the Exchange Fund amounted to HK$12.9 billion
(2018: HK$7.7 billion), comprising a total principal sum of HK$12.2
billion (2018: HK$7.6 hillion) plus income earned and accrued but
not yet withdrawn as at the reporting date.

The placements with the Exchange Fund are invested in the
Investment Portfolio and Long-Term Growth Portfolio of the
Exchange Fund, subject to a lock-up period. The rate of return on
the placements with the Exchange Fund is determined annually.
For Investment Portfolio, the rate of return is calculated on the
basis of the average annual rate of return on the portfolio over
the past six years or the average annual yield of three-year
Government Bond in the previous year (subject to a minimum of
zero percent), whichever is the higher. With respect to the Long-
Term Growth Portfolio, the rate of return is determined based on
the current year time-weighted rate of return.
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20. B AERE

T-E-AF+_A=1t—H ARAH

M A FIFEAT :

BERIBERERA
HKMC Mortgage Management Limited

BBRERR AR AR
HKMC Insurance Limited

EREEARAR
HKMC Annuity Limited

EREBIESRA (£ ) AR
HKMC Funding Corporation (1) Limited*

Bauhinia MBS Limited*
AAKBERRIERA
HKMC Credit & Guarantee

Corporation Limited

Hong Kong Mortgage Credit &
Guarantee Corporation Limited

HKMC Premier Solutions Limited?

* REBFBE(A

GESIPIE S

ERK LR
Place of
incorporation

Hong Kong

Hong Kong

Hong Kong

Hong Kong

FEHE
Cayman Islands

Hong Kong
Hong Kong

Hong Kong

X L B HE

)‘Uﬂﬂ:u;ikf’m%ﬁ—lﬁﬁ;“ﬂﬂ$ Y A)E
REVIZBUEA TR TR - MARBFHR

BRARXLATNRD

A ZAET

—NFWBEMBL

20. Interests in subsidiaries

Details of the subsidiaries of the Company as at 31 December 2019

are as follows:

AN
KEAR
(FHRKEA)
HAH PR
BROTRBRRHEE (HERBA) AR
(Rt #923I) st Percentage of
Particulars of issued Percentage of shares held by
and fully paid up shares heldby  the Company's
FEIS share capital the Company subsidiary
Principal activities (Class of shares) (or its nominee)  (or its nominee)
WARERIZIEEF - H/ME 1,000,000 (EER) 100% TER
TR - REEIZBAEF  HK$1,000,000 (Ordinary) N/A
E’b FZH
Mortgage purchase and
servicing, funding of
microfinance loans,
and origination of
reverse mortgage loans
—RRR LS 3,000,000,000 %7t (E1Ek) 100% ER
General insurance business HK$3,000,000,000 (Orclinary) N/A
KRR LS 5,000,000,000 %7t (E1Ek) 100% NER
Long term insurance business HK$5,000,000,000 (Ordinary) N/A
FEELED 1,000 7T (E@k) NER NER
No business activity HK$1,000 (Ordinary) N/A N/A
HEFLEZ 1000 7 (L@kR) NER NER
No business activity US$1,000 (Ordinary) N/A N/A
TR 1AL (ERER) NER 100%
Dormant HK$1 (Ordinary) N/A
TEPRS 1B (BRR) TNER 100%
Dormant HK$1 (Ordinary) N/A
REEERLSXERS 100787 (L8R TNER 100%
Provision of marketing and HK$100 (Ordinary) N/A
business development
Services
& These companies are subsidiary undertakings as defined in Schedule 1 to the

Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and the Company does not hold shares
in these companies which are set up for the operation of mortgage-backed
securitisation programme guaranteed by the Company.

A The company was incorporated in April 2019.
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21. FiftERIm ~ e R EMEE 21. Prepayments, deposits and other assets

2019 2018
THET FET
HK$‘000 HK$'000
NESERE Corporate club debentures 830 750
1253 S35 I R W am CSA receivable 72,853 137,483
EE2IRBEEENE XTIES Receivables from securities issued for
B9 7 USRI settlement after the reporting date 1,002,223 488,021
H At N7 YRR IR Other receivable 227,891 172,306
EfbRr= Other assets 33,552 30,931
1,337,349 829,491
22. EEHE= 22. Fixed assets
B ARSI
HERRAE PHAERE
Right-of- EYE TS
use assets Office
onleased HTWL%EEL  equipment, RE
properties Leasehold furniture B Motor 17}
forownuse improvement and fixtures  Computers vehicle Total
FHT FHT FHT FHT FHT FHT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T2 )\f-A-H Net book amount as at 1 January 2018
e = 11,553 882 21,776 118 34,329
NE Additions - 7,961 4228 26,619 - 33,808
I8 Depreciation charge - (5,579) (1,074) (12,630) (88) (19.371)
F-Z-\E+=A=1—H Netbookamountasat
NEEET 31 December 2018 - 13,935 4,036 35,765 30 53,766
FNEAM SRS N Changes on adoption of HKFRS 16
F16 0L 105,090 (5,782) = = = 99,308
F=Z-N&-R-AH Net book amount as at 1 January 2019
NEEET 105,090 8,153 4,036 35,765 30 153,074
RE Additions - 6,508 1,484 30,345 - 38,337
ke Written off - (362) (148) - - (510)
1B (fE10) Depreciation charge (Note 10) (53,877) (4,898) (1,693) (20,539) (30 (81,037)
F-E-AE+=A=1+—H Nethook amount as at
k28 31 December 2019 51,213 9,401 3,679 45,571 - 109,864
F-B-NFE+=A=1+—-H Asat31December 2019
XA (E Cost 105,090 44818 14,014 248,700 775 413,397
21471 Accumulated depreciation (53,877) (35,417) (10,33) (203,129) (775) (303,533)
i Net ook amount 51,213 9,401 3,679 45,571 - 109,864
F-E—N\E+-A=+—H Asat31December2018
KAE Cost - 47,755 12,759 218,355 775 279,644
29718 Accumulated depreciation - (33,820) 8723 (182,590) (745) (225,879)
T Net book amount - 13,935 4,036 35,765 30 53,766
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23. MfTFIR

23. Interest payable

2019 2018

FET TAET
HK$°000 HK$'000

AT SR A FE

Interest payable from:

— EAR{THREIES — debt securities issued 320,288 229,577
— FEEHE Y — interest rate swap contracts 44,345 20,088
— B — other liabilities 8,241 7,803

372,874 257,468

24. BIFFIRIR » Rt FF 32 R R At T

fii

24. Accounts payable, accrued expenses and other

liabilities

2019 2018

THET FHT

HK$'000 HK$'000

IVER LIRS IVER B3 Accounts payable and accrued expenses 291,494 248,121
EAth 1 7= Other liabilities 4,866,088 4,762,799
HE MG Lease liabilities 45,773 _
Bk Other provision 57,862 50,759
5,261,217 5,061,679

H fth 1 G 8 R /N B BV RIEAR 1T X T AR
BIEERFE HEFTUR B A IRAR 2% R 34 3R (B 4Bk
B3R & 48 o< FF 32 ) 379,717,008 o (= &
— J\£ : 370,511,00058 7T ) (Mi3E31) © 5
FERAT S =F+-_AKR-_ZTTNF
— A BT E A IE B 5 s BT HE hnag
e Y 335 1E X 1) 4,486,371,0008 7T (= =
— J\4F : 4,392,288,000TT) - T—F— 11
F - AR EmH BN 53,198,000 7T °

Other liabilities represented the guarantee fee and fund received
(net of claims and related expenses) of HK$379,717,000 (2018:
HK$370,511,000) under the special concessionary measures of
the SME Financing Guarantee Scheme (Note 31) and the deferred
consideration of HK$4,486,371,000 (2018: HK$4,392,288,000) used
for credit enhancement on the mortgage loans purchased from
the Government in December 2003 and January 2004. The total
cash outflow for leases in 2019 was HK$53,198,000.
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25. (REEFIHE R BIRE T = 25. Insurance liabilities and reinsurance assets

2019 2018
] BRE A BRK A

Gross Reinsurance Net Gross  Reinsurance Net
TR TEx THET FiEx AT THL
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

—RRRLS General insurance:
RARARERBARERE S Provision for unearned premiums
and guarantee fees 1,435,165 201,784 1,233,381 1,290,372 166,383 1,123,989
RRBRES Provision for outstanding claims:
—BER/(BME) BT — claims reported/(recovery) 1,895 389 1,506 2,236 (1) 2,237
—EBEEEBRRERER — claims incurred but not reported 37,096 6,818 30,278 30,236 5,136 25,100
38,991 7,207 31,784 32472 5,135 27,337
1,474,156 208,991 1,265,165 1,322,844 171518 1,15132%
N Life insurance:
REZEH AN Policyholders' liahilities 5,027,483 - 5027,483 3,284,529 - 3284529
6,501,639 208,991 6,292,648 4,607,373 171518 4435855
(a) —RRERPEML S (a) Generalinsurance
i) RHEHPRERERZAKRZE (i)  Analysis of movement in provision for unearned
it UM premiums and guarantee fees
2019
] BRE A 4
Gross Reinsurance Net Gross ~ Rel Net
TAx Tax Thn TR T TATL
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T-A-H As at 1 January 1,290,372 166,383 1,123,989 1,095,805 160,143 935,662
BURERRE: (fifi£8) Premiums written (Note 8) 542,438 76,223 466,215 634,757 69,018 565,739
BAHRS (1£8) Premiums eamed (Note 8) (397,645  (40,822)  (356,823)  (440,190) (62778) (377412
F+zp=t+-H As at 31 December 1435165 201,784 1233381 1290372 166383 1,123989
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(i) RRERRZBZHSHMOT (ii)

Analysis of movement in provision for outstanding

claims
2019
2] BRR A E2 ]
Gross  Reinsurance Net 6ross
T Fian T BT BT b
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T-A-H Asat 1 January 32,472 5,135 27,337 34,345 4458 29,887
RANIEES Claims paid (2,446) (698) (1,748) (7,556) = (7,556)
BREERR Claims recovery 3,044 293 2,751 1,908 294 1614
B4 /(E3) & (HiE8) : Claims incurred/(written back) (Note 8);
— BERER — claims reported (939) 795 (1,734) 749 (488) 1,237
— B BRBIRER — claims incurred but not reported 6,860 1,682 5,178 3,026 871 2,155
5,921 2477 3,444 3775 383 3392
T+=A=1+—-H As at 31 December 38,991 7,207 31,784 32472 5135 27,337
(b) AF{REE (b) Life insurance
i) REBFEAARESSN (i) Analysis of movement in policyholders’ liabilities
2019
E2H] BRE A8 41
Gross Reinsurance Net [ Net
Thx FEL Thx ; FHT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T-R—H Asat 1 January 3,284,529 - 3,284,529 - - -
BRREREMNFE Claims and benefits paid (275,160) - (275,160) (33,116) - (33,116)
BEERRREEREA  Claimsincurred and movement in
AEE () policyholders' liabilties (Note 8) 2,018,114 - 2018114 3317645 - 3317645
F+ZA=1+—H As at 31 December 5,027,483 - 5,027,483 3,284,529 - 3,284,529
(i) FERERAGTRITHOGE (i) Key assumptions and reserving approach

NTRBERREL - £ RIR
SEERITRER - FEFR
RIFEDBFRIT—IR o

For long term insurance contracts, economic
assumptions are continually reviewed and updated.
Non-economic assumptions are reviewed at least
annually.

B AE A IATEE R RRE b Based on generally accepted actuarial principles and in

Z 1M B ECR R b (K H 7
FEE) ANDE AP - A Al
AFRBETERAZEITED
ARBHEEETHE TR
NRRIENE

accordance with the Hong Kong Insurance Companies
(Determination of Long Term Liabilities) Rules of the
Insurance Ordinance, the valuation of individual life
liabilities was carried out using the Modified Net Level
Premium Valuation method, subject to a minimum of
the surrender value.
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(iif)

(iv)

FRHFEE
FET- %

£ FAHKAOIE T R R (AT
KW ERBEAMNBE) - HE
REMITETERIRENTF
i Z 1112 15% B9 R 22 S 0 -

KK

ARIEC R B ol 22 PR BB R F
A (R EIRBRERE ) L )38 13
Z(BITptEEp FiHRERE) -

EX S

EEXHBRDETHNHELR
RS

fhERREE

fMEMNEEAFR-RaxsS
THERBRIT3IFRNRIF
RV R B R e R R R W ek
TE I EL B o Tl (E B HIE
T34 A W K B 8 7 AR R I
]mE - THEE AR R T
SEX S THERREI3
FRMRH R - B A WS E
B FIERH - WHERTAE
AR L (KR REE) M
MINAPRBEREF 2R
HOBEERES - HEMEH
4% °

(iii)

(iv)

Non-economic assumptions
Mortality

HKAO1 mortality table adjusted by mortality
improvement and selection loading is used, with
loading of 15% for provision for adverse deviations on
top of best estimate mortality assumptions.

Lapse

In accordance with Section 13 of the Hong Kong
Insurance Companies (Determination of Long Term
Liabilities) Rules of the Insurance Ordinance (i.e. no
allowance is made for the voluntary discontinuance).

Renewal expense

The renewal expense assumption is based on internal
experience study.

Valuation interest basis

The valuation interest rate is the weighted proportion
of yield on existing assets and reinvestment yield
expected of assets bought within 3 years of valuation
date and 3 years after valuation date. The reinvestment
yield of assets bought within 3 years of valuation date
is obtained by taking the average of yield on current
assets and reinvestment yield of assets expected to be
bought 3 years after valuation date. This methodology
is in compliance with the Hong Kong Insurance
Companies (Determination of Long Term Liabilities)
Regulation and the actuarial guidance provided by the
Actuarial Society of Hong Kong. The valuation interest
rate is 4%.
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26. EATTIRSFIES

26. Debt securities issued

2019

TR
HK$'000

2018
TAET
HK$'000

12 0 55 R AR B ik Y 45 S51IE 35 Debt securities carried at
amortised cost
R EfFR S MTN 10,308,191 14,540,716
IR AR K AR SIE S5 251 Total debt securities carried at
amortised cost 10,308,191 14,540,716
EERNF T E HUAAFER R Debt securities designated as hedged
KR SIEH items under fair value hedge
5% T A KTt RS DIP notes 1,733,270 1,808,922
R EfGR MTN 27,522,318 20,799,258
FEE NI RIE HAAFEX R Total debt securities designated as
BIRSSIE 5 257 hedged items under fair value hedge 29,255,588 22,608,180
EEAUALEZ LT AR Debt securities designated as at
R SSIE 5 fair value through profit or loss
RS TR EITITNGS DIP notes 147,184 143,981
FETE NIARFEZ LI AR ES Total debt securities designated as at
RS 5 S 20 fair value through profit or 10ss 147,184 143,981
B AT IS B A Total debt securities issued 39,710,963 37,292,877

FREERIT(ZE—NF : k) TR
N 3 E A FEEA I AR SRS IE
Fo BEMFUFZAFEENRTEE
PR o FHAFIAN - FEE AR
FEEMITARENSRAGIKEE ' B
RERARES QN E T B HN MR G HHF
A NI H 2 5 036,816,000 T (==
— J\%E : 40,019,000/ 7T) °

ZERERNARXFHEIIKN SR ATRE
REARER 2 ERNRE S REMEXN

RS -

During the year, no debt securities (2018: nil) were designated on
initial recognition as at fair value through profit or loss. The fair
value changes are attributable to changes in benchmark interest
rates for the debt securities designated as at fair value through
profit or loss. The carrying amount of the financial liabilities
designated as at fair value through profit or loss upon initial
recognition is HK$36,816,000 (2018: HK$40,019,000) lower than the
amount that the Group would be contractually required to pay at
maturity to the note holders.

There were no significant gains or losses attributable to changes in

the credit risk of the Group for those financial liabilities designated
as at fair value.
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BERITHRSIUESFNRFIBRANT

The movement in debt securities issued is summarised as follows:

2018

T

HK$'000

FT—HR—H As at 1 January 37,494,823 34,706,897

KAT Issuance 31,890,989 34,074,308

R TEE[E] Less: Redemption (29,474,462) (31,289,536)

SNTISE I, Z 5T Exchange difference 862 3,154

BN EEER Total nominal value 39,912,212 37,494,823

RPEAEITLEED Unamortised portion of discount (74,974) (92,638)

NEEIFE Fair value adjustment (126,275) (109,308)

F+=—A=+—H As at 31 December 39,710,963 37,292,877
REERITHRES Notes issued during the year comprise:

Sibilint
MTN

TERT
HK$°000

BRI HEE Amount issued at nominal value 31,890,989
2 U ERER IR Consideration received 31,843,819

AT B R1TH R SSIE A1 8 A8 & F T
RE MATZERSIESE ERE—R
EEREREBRAMR

27. BEA

27.

All the debt securities issued are unsecured obligations of the
Group, and are issued for the purposes of providing general
working capital and refinancing.

Share capital

2018

THETT
HK$'000

BRITRHR Issued and fully paid:

2012 % & AR 2 billion ordinary shares 7,000,000 7,000,000
R AR ZH AT The movement in share capital is summarised as follows:

2019 2018
FH&T T
HK$°000 HK$'000
+—HA—H As at 1 January 7,000,000 2,000,000
R Capital injection - 5,000,000
F+=—B=+—8H As at 31 December 7,000,000 7,000,000
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28. 5FXEALITIMEKXRRS

@)

ARBREERMER BT ABUTFELI
LESMBE (T T NFE+H—
B A Sy i W B R B PASN L E S
EREANFDAE) - AEHS TS
BREALITZINTERRS ¢

SRFRRNEEEZERNRZE
ETHIED

() AEFAFERAHEESERME
ERGRS T AR REE XSGR
SHRELEEREENER
% HHN B BF20007 8
T(ZE—\F :1807ET)
LEBEER ENEXFER
BiZRESHEE

(il AEAFAFEFE£20407
BIL(ZE—/\F : 1,780 77 /5
T)EBRAE EANEBERE
BERARTHZER

(i) ARRTAFEEHNOTETT
(ZB—N\F : 60F &) TE
BLER  FARZHOR

S

(v, =HEELTRABLINLESR
NN B4 £ 30012 7 T # B A
ER TZE-A$+_H
Zt—BHEREERF(=
E-N\F: L) R

v) SREERTABIINCESE
HRARTEATING € =ik
20012 S TLYE RRR A + LA R Bl
RNFMES QA RAINE
B MARRFEERES DA
MENENREEXRTETA
D MAE S A FEAMERN
MINRSIERERA -

28. Material related party transactions

@)

The Company and its wholly-owned subsidiaries are owned
by the Government for the account of the Exchange Fund
(described before 1 October 2019 as Financial Secretary of
Hong Kong as controller of the Exchange Fund). The Group
entered into the following material transactions with the
following related parties:

Transactions with the HKMA, a Government-related entity,
included the following:

(i)  the Group subscribed to the custodian and clearing
agent services provided by the Central Moneymarkets
Unit Service operated by the HKMA and paid a total fee
amount of HK$2.0 million (2018: HK$1.8 million) to the
HKMA for such services during the year,

(i) the Group incurred a secondment fee of HK$20.4
million (2018: HK$17.8 million) for secondees from the
HKMA during the year;

(i)~ the Company paid a back-up site service fee of HK$0.6
million (2018: HK$0.6 million) to the HKMA during the
year;

(iv) the Monetary Authority through the Exchange Fund
provided the Company with a HK$30 billion Revolving
Credit Facility and there was no outstanding balance
as at 31 December 2019 (2018: nil); and

(v)  the Monetary Authority through the Exchange Fund
committed to inject additional funds up to HK$20
billion into the Company as equity for the purpose of
financing the Company’s additional capital injection
into the HKMCA and the Company committed to inject
such additional funds into the HKMCA as equity if the
solvency ratio of the HKMCA would fall below a certain
percentage.
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SRR SEHE TS :

() TFTZE-hFHLTAMKFH
KEABERRBER(ZF
— )\ : 2812 T) : &

(i AREFEP/PEFAERIT
X REAMRERIERFEKF
K53 7 B BUT XA 8 B 5 R AR
IE 78 &1 & 59 1,0004Z 7% 7T &
3304278 T H) J\BK K LA AR R
REEBOPISTHB R~ F
BEINTHES -

SEERBERERAR (ARAEN
L2RMBRRNRZEE TSI :

() ZARAANBERBEEFERA
BB R I T AR
TR R ZRIBIT R TR
THHRE R ® - BTz —%IR
B 4R PR FR AR UE AR B 28 AR 4
K

(i) A2BRUWENTHNEEE) &
BRBEEARARARES2S
RITUERABIRA) 55/ EU BT
KR T R RR2 S
BUHEBRBEEERARE
N2 ER AR /N B SRR

Transactions with the Government included the following:

No mortgage loans were purchased from The Financial
Secretary Incorporated in 2019 (2018: HK$281 million);
and

the Group provided two loan guarantee products with
80% and 90% guarantee coverages respectively under
its SME Financing Guarantee Scheme (SFGS) at a
concessionary guarantee fee rate and up to respective
total loan guarantee commitments of HK$100 billion
and HK$33 billion reimbursable by the Government
with details set out in Note 31.

Transactions with HKMC Mortgage Management Limited
(HMML), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company,
included the following:

(i)

the Company funded loan acquisition under the
MIP and origination under the Reverse Mortgage
Programme (RMP) by the HMML with general
insurance covers from the HKMCI; and

the Company as scheme operator, the HMML and
various participating banks as loan originators
maintained their loan participation agreements under
the Microfinance Scheme pursuant to which the HMML
would fund all or part of the microfinance loans.
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RANE2EMBAR) R SBET
CZIE=30
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(iii)

(iv)

RARAEE A FRERSE
1002 B TTHIE T A N F & A
ANFRLIRERS - TR
BN BWARNIZOFHET(=F
—N\E:10RFxL) mMT=
TE—hE+-_A=+—H8 " &
KEERESERENITHE S
BNRA.2532 8 T (ZE—N\F :
3,510 578 7T)

RRRSFEAFNIZIAEF
L AERFESRERA
REBISEEIEPHA>~E
MBRAE - FANFEIT X
AT A TL(=F — N\ F:
21058 MT —F—NF
TZHA=+—H ' mAREER
EERRMITHE2EH 4,610
FET(ZF—\F: 44007
BIT) ;

AN A AZ LR B A Bl R &
=35 2012 A TTHI{E BT A RIRIE
REABMLESEzRER
& FHHF S WA 72,160
FAET(ZE—N\F:T) M
FZE-NFF+=_RAR=+—
B ERELASERRENIT
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AR B SRIER B X RT3 H]
SERLH - AEBIRIERE
RARRREF LS EETE
R ENERRE - FAM
EHETF (=T — )\ F:
13607 &TL)  MT=—F—Ah
F+ZA=+T—HA5FxRFH
THNEERER(CE—/\F:
) e

BEMI TIRRS R A FRERH

RPNFERRNFEEETE °

Transactions with the HKMCA and the HKMCI, both being
wholly-owned subsidiaries of the Company, included the
following:

(i)

(iif)

(iv)

the Company provided a facility up to HK$10 billion
to the HKMCA to fund the HKMCA's annuity business
operation. The interest income therefrom was HK$3.7
million during the year (2018: HK$0.1 million) and the
aggregate amount of the outstanding principal balance
and the accrued interest as at 31 December 2019 was
HK$425.3 million (2018: HK$35.1 million);

the Company maintained a cash placement
arrangement with the HKMCA for managing the capital
and surplus funds generated in the normal course
of business operation of the HKMCA. The interest
expense thereon was HK$3.3 million during the year
(2018: HK$2.1 million) and the aggregate amount of the
outstanding principal balance and the accrued interest
as at 31 December 2019 was HK$46.1 million (2018:
HK$44 million);

the Company provided a facility up to HK$2 billion to
the HKMCI to fund the HKMCI's business operation. The
interest income therefrom was HK$21.6 million during
the year (2018: nil) and the aggregate amount of the
outstanding principal balance and the accrued interest
as at 31 December 2019 was HK$1,521.6 million (2018:
nil); and

the Company maintained a cash placement
arrangement with the HKMCI for managing the capital
and surplus funds generated in the normal course of
business operation of the HKMCI. There was no interest
expense during the year (2018: HK$13.6 million) and
no outstanding balance for cash placement with the
Company as at 31 December 2019 (2018: nil).

There were arrangements whereby the Company provided
headoffice corporate support services and funding
arrangements to its subsidiaries during the year. Fees on
these transactions were determined on an arm’s length

basis.
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TERIRNAERIEA THLE R
T~

Balances of amounts due to relevant related parties as at the
end of the reporting period are as follows:

SNLES B
The Exchange Fund

The Government

2019 2018 2019 2018
Tigx THEL Ti#x TR

INCEEREH (HHE19)
(Note 19)
A (24 231)

Other liabilities (Notes 24 and 31)

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

Placements with the Exchange Fund

12,881,627

7,734,934 = -
4,866,088 4,762,799

(b) EEEEEAR

ITZEBRARNEEREZEERN
RATRE - 151%F Rz AR E L %S
WAL BREERSREERAR -

REETEERRARNFHESE

FaehEMERRE AR

(b)

Key management personnel

Key management personnel are those persons having
authority and responsibility for planning, directing and
controlling the activities of the Group, directly or indirectly,
including directors and senior officers.

Compensation of the key management personnel
compensation for the year comprised:

2019 2018
FTHAT
HK$'000

F#BxT
HK$'000

Salaries and other short-term

employee benefits 29,541 23,270
BHEEF Post-employment benefits 2,458 2,274
31,999 25,544
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29.

30.

i

29. Commitments

(a) #XF (a) Capital
2019 2018
FET FETT
HK$'000 HK$'000
ERUERITE Authorised and contracted for 1,667 803
EHLEBRITY Authorised but not contracted for 39,892 42,269
41,559 43,072

EREAAGE T B S MR BINIRE N
BHEX -

(b) &EHL

FoE—/\F+-A=+—0 B
AL AL ERATAIEH AR
SRS RRAMT -

The above capital commitments mainly relate to
commitments to purchase computer equipment and
software.

(b) Operating lease

As at 31 December 2018, the total future minimum lease
payments under non-cancellable operating leases were as
follows:

DREYNL - Office premises:

— P ET—%F — not later than one year 53,197

— 2T —FEFMEZThHEF — later than one year and not later than five years 50,313
103,510

BRI T X R L ZiZiB Tk

F_E-AFE+-A=1+—8 KX&EHRK
IR 1T X A9 RS A& AR B8 49 7 27912 7
TT(=ZF—N\F : 23723 70) » #4812
BT (T — \F : 4028 7T) B AZER
RGN B MR BRE - MASH N 8173
HRT2MZBT(ZFE—NF 1971275
TL) KIS

F_E-NF+-_A=1+—8 ~"&EHZL
EZIRB TR A XS AR BALL) N 1254278
TT(ZFE—N\F : 96{ZBTT) » HFR 13258
T(ZE—)\F : T) BERZEBRR AR
TSEERES - MASERNBTEBERT 112
ZABTT(ZE—N\F : 96{ZE ) X o

30. Mortgage Insurance Programme and Reverse

Mortgage Programme

As at 31 December 2019, the total risk-in-force of the Group
under the MIP was approximately HK$27.9 billion (2018: HK$23.7
billion) of which HK$4.8 billion (2018: HK$4 billion) was ceded to
the approved reinsurers and the balance of HK$23.1 billion (2018:
HK$19.7 billion) was retained by the Group.

As at 31 December 2019, the total risk-in-force of the Group under
the RMP was approximately HK$12.5 billion (2018: HK$9.6 billion)
of which HK$1.3 billion (2018: nil) was ceded to the approved
reinsurer and the balance of HK$11.2 billion (2018: HK$9.6 billion)
was retained by the Group.
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31.

32.
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31.

32.

Special concessionary measures under the SME
Financing Guarantee Scheme

The Group provided loan guarantee products with 80% and 90%
guarantee coverage under the existing SFGS at a concessionary
guarantee fee rate and up to a total loan guarantee commitment
of HK$100 billion and HK$33 billion respectively reimbursable by
the Government. All guarantee fees collected under the special
loan guarantee products are set aside to meet the relevant default
claims and related out-of-pocket expenses. The remaining balance
of the guarantee fees, if any, will be returned to, and any shortfall
will be borne by, the Government. The Group is responsible for the
operation of the product and the applicable day-to-day operating
COSts.

Regarding the special loan guarantee products, there is no impact
on the consolidated income statement of the Group in respect
of guarantee fee revenue, default claims or any direct expenses
involved. Given that the Group operates only the products for the
Government, the Group considers the risk and rewards associated
with this product rest with the Government. Hence, the risk-in-
force for the products has not been included as the Group’s off-
balance sheet exposures.

Events occurring after the reporting period

After the outbreak of Coronavirus Disease 2019 (COVID-19
outbreak) in early 2020, a series of precautionary and control
measures had been and continued to be implemented across the
city. The Group would pay close attention to the development of
the COVID-19 outbreak and evaluate its impact on the financial
position and operating results of the Group. As at the date on
which this set of financial statements was authorised for issue,
the Group was not aware of any material adverse effects on the
financial statements as a result of the COVID-19 outbreak.
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zh

BANEXAFNTF-F—RE+=A
=t+—HHMSRAR

movement of the Company

31 December 2019

33. Statement of financial position and reserve

33.1 Statement of financial position of the Company as at

2019
hpzs FHET
Note HK$°000
"= ASSETS
NekEHAE Cash and short-term funds 26,239,139 27,251,724
RCF) B K5k Interest and remittance
receivables 481,196 392,545
PTESRITA Derivative financial instruments 200,702 161,047
DIFAE 3 Loan portfolio, net 5,089,549 4,219,189
IEHIE R Investment securities:
— A AFEZITT AEAM — at fair value through other
| comprehensive income 4,920,402 5,091,664
— U AFEZRAIT AR — at fair value through
profit or loss 378,803 543,612
— RN F DR — at amortised cost 10,245,148 8,938,368
L IEPNEIE & Interests in subsidiaries 11,820,677 10,211,083
TR - e R EMA~  Prepayments, deposits and
other assets 1,094,115 648,467
& 7E 7 = Fixed assets 84,228 30,935
B BE Total assets 60,553,959 57,488,634
i fiR LIABILITIES
AR B Interest payable 372,926 257,499
R ERNEIEEE N Placements by subsidiary 46,000 44,000
RIASTIRIN ~ RIS & Accounts payable, accrued
H {7 fR expenses and other liabilities 4,771,746 4,604,471
PTESRITA Derivative financial instruments 299,935 264,386
L ERF I £ 5 Current tax liabilities 87,226 87,226
188 ZE A 15 7 {3 Deferred tax liabilities 4,939 3,528
2 AITRSIES Debt securities issued 39,710,963 37,292,877
AREH Total liabilities 45,293,735 42,553,987
& EQUITY
W358 AR AR K& Capital and reserves attributable to
i the equity holder:
il Share capital 7,000,000 7,000,000
RE & T Retained profits 322 8,235,410 7,937,098
N ERER Fair value reserve 322 24,814 (2,451)
&SR] Total equity 15,260,224 14,934,647
AR S Total liabilities and equity 60,553,959 57,488,634

BERET - E-_FTFWA_+tB#t

JERERTIT -

REX

Eddie W. M. Yue
EIEEFEMTESE Deputy Chairman and Executive Director

FLH

Raymond L. C. Li

Approved and authorised for issue by the Board of
Directors on 27 April 2020.

7TEFEFE L E  Executive Director and Chief Executive Officer
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33.2 KATHES 33.2 Reserves of the Company
RBEF R ATEREE
Retained  Contingency Fair value B
profits reserve reserve Total
THART TART FAT TR
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
F-E-N\F—F—R4% Balance as at 1 January 2018 5,894,273 1,679,837 4,717 7,578,827
AEEHF Profit for the year 362,988 = = 362,988
Hiremis : Other comprehensive income:
AATET It AEM4EYE  Change in the fair value of debt securities
NRSEFATFERD at Fvocl - - (7,182) (7,182)
MAFEEZHIT AL EEYE  Change in the loss allowance of
HEBIES SRR ER debt securities at FVOCI - - 14 14
rEELAKRESH Total comprehensive income for the year 362,988 - (7,168) 355,820
ER IR B il 12 B A Transfer of 50% or 75% of net risk premium
MBS R 3% 2340 50% 2K 75% earned from retained profits to
ENEIER contingency reserve (63,784) 63,784 = =
BRREREEEREER Release of contingency reserve to
retained profits 1,743,621 (1,743,621) - -
F-F-N\E+=-B=+—H  Asat31December 2018 7,937,098 - (2,451) 7,934,647
FNEEMSIREENSE 165 Changes on adoption of HKFRS 16
0| (1,214) = - (1,214)
F=2-1§-A-H Restated balance as at 1 January 2019
ZEIER 7,935,884 - (2,451) 7,933,433
REERF Profit for the year 299,526 - - 299,526
Hieme Other comprehensive income:
DAATET It AR 4 EYE  Change in the fair value of debt securities
HRSEFATERD at FvoCl - - 27,311 27,311
DA ETH It AEMSEYE  Change in the loss allowance of
HRSIERSRIE R debt securities at FVOCI - - (46) (26)
AERLEKE LA Total comprehensive income for the year 299,526 - 27,265 326,791
F-E-hAFE+=-A=+—-H  Asat31December 2019 8,235,410 - 24,814 8,260,224
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3% BEEFRXS KHfn84%%Ey 34. Directors’ material interests in transactions,

BEXHFEXR arrangements and contracts

HE - T-NF+-_A=+—HIFER - At no time during the year ended 31 December 2019, there
PEEDDGITIARNEBERKRIEN — subsisted or entered into any transaction, arrangement or contract
7o XNARBULSEEEN BERAEH of significance in relation to the Company's business, to which any
RAREZHATHEA OELMRAREC(A member of the Group was a party, and in which any person who
AIROIDE M) ELREEERAIEELRF was a director of the Company at any time during the year or a
ERENEMRS - THMEY - connected entity (as defined in the Companies Ordinance) of any

such person had, directly or indirectly, a material interest.

35. BiEMFIR/E 35. Approval of financial statements
EERTZE_TFMNA-tEtHBAYR The financial statements were approved by the Board of Directors
WK © on 27 April 2020.
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